
AGENDA 
OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
REGULAR MEETING 

MARCH 5, 2024 

A complete copy of the Agenda packet will be available on the Oakdale Irrigation District website 
www.oakdaleirrigation.com 

If would like to join the meeting virtually instead of in person, please see the below options: 

• To join the meeting via teleconference, click HERE or go to www.oakdaleirrigation.com and select
“View Meetings Online”. 

• To participate in the meeting via telephone, dial in at 1 (669) 900-9128, Access Code: 358-572-
1867 #, the message will ask for a participant ID, just press # again.  If you experience technical
difficulties, please contact our IT Systems Administrator Michael Ballinger at (209) 896-6887.

Public comments may be submitted in advance via email to smoody@oakdaleirrigation.com no later than 
4:30 p.m. on the day before the meeting. If you wish to make public comments during the live 
teleconference, you may alert the Board President at the time public comments are called for. Pursuant 
to Government Code section 54954.3(b)(1), public comment on an Agenda Item is limited to five (5) 
minutes. 

CALL TO ORDER: 9:00 a.m. District Office Boardroom 
1205 East F Street, Oakdale, California 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

ROLL CALL: Brad DeBoer, Linda Santos, Tom Orvis, Herman Doornenbal and Ed Tobias 

ADDITIONS OR DELETION OF AGENDA ITEMS 

ACTION TO TAKE VARIOUS ITEMS OUT OF SEQUENCE 

PUBLIC COMMENT: The Board of Directors welcomes participation in its meetings. This time is provided 
for the public to address the Directors of the District on matters of concern that fall within the jurisdiction of 
the Board that are not on the agenda.  

Because matters being discussed are not on the agenda there should be no expectation of discussion or 
comment by the Board except to properly refer the matter for review or action as appropriate. Matters 
concerning District operations or responsibilities can be addressed prior to Board meetings by contacting 
District Management or Directors. In this manner, your concerns can be addressed expeditiously. 

The Oakdale Irrigation District Board pledges to be respectful, truthful, knowledgeable, productive and 
unified in conducting the people’s business. The Board believes in conducting its business using 
respectful and civil dialogue and would request that the public conduct itself in a similar fashion in their 
presentations. Disrespectful and threatening behavior will not be tolerated. 

It is not required, but speakers may provide their name and address. Public Comments will be limited to 

http://www.oakdaleirrigation.com/
https://www.oakdaleirrigation.com/view-meetings-online
http://www.oakdaleirrigation.com/
mailto:smoody@oakdaleirrigation.com


A. Consent Calendar:
Page No. 

1 Approve the Board of Directors Minutes of the Regular Meeting of February 5, 2024 6 

2 Approve Oakdale Irrigation District’s Statement of Obligations 13 

3 Approve OID Improvement Districts’ Statement of Obligations 19 

4 Approve the Treasurer’s Report as of January 31, 2024 22 

5 Approve Resolution Authorizing the Abandonment and Quitclaim of a Portion of the 
Cavill Drain (APN: 063-029-075)  

28 

6 Approve Board attendance at the 2024 ACWA Spring Conference & Expo, May 7th – 
9th, 2024 in Sacramento, California 

41 

7 Approve Resolution Authorizing the Abandonment and Quitclaim of the Talbot 
Pipeline (APNs 075-015-023/025/026 & 075-031-034) 

44 

B. Action Calendar:
Page No. 

8 Review and Take Possible Action to Adopt a Resolution Approving Water Availability for the 
10-Year Out-of-District Water Sale Program During the 2024 Irrigation Season

58 

C. Presentation:

9 2020-2022 Water Budget Presentation by Davids Engineering, Inc. 61 

D. Discussion:

10 Discussion on the Start of the 2024 Irrigation Season 72 

11 Brichetto 1896 and 1898 Water Contract Discussion 76 

E. Communications:

12 Directors’ Comments/Suggestions 

13 Committee Reports 

14 General Manager’s report on the status of OID activities.  

15 Water Counsel report 

F. Closed Session:

16 Government Code §54956.9(d)(2) – Potential Exposure to Litigation – 3 cases 



17 Government Code §54957(b)(1) – Personnel Evaluation – 2 cases 

G. Adjournment:

• The next Regular Board Meeting of the Oakdale Irrigation District Board of Directors is
scheduled for Tuesday, April 2, 2024, at 9:00 a.m. in the board room at 1205 East F Street,
Oakdale, CA.

• The next Joint Board Meeting of the South San Joaquin and Oakdale Irrigation Districts serving
the Tri-Dam Project and Tri-Dam Power Authority and other joint business matters is scheduled
for Thursday, March 21, 2024, at 9:00 a.m. at 1205 East F Street, Oakdale, CA.

Writings distributed to Board Members in connection with the open session items on this agenda are available for 
public inspection in the office of the Board Secretary. Any person who has a question concerning any of the agenda 
items may call the Executive Assistant at (209) 840-5502.   

ADA Compliance Statement:  In compliance with the Americans with Disability Act, if you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the Executive Assistant at (209) 840-5502.  Notification 48 hours prior to 
the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting. 



Page 1 of 75



Page 2 of 75



BOARD AGENDA REPORT 
Date:  March 5, 2024 
Item Number: 1 
Staff:   Scot A. Moody 

SUBJECT: APPROVE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF February 6, 2024 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the Board of Directors Minutes of the Regular Meeting of 
FEBRUARY 6, 2024 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 Draft Minutes of the Board of Directors’ Meeting of February 6, 2024

Board Motion: 

Motion by: ___________________________  Second by: ______________________________ 

VOTE: 
Orvis (Yes/No)  Doornenbal (Yes/No)  Santos (Yes/No)  DeBoer (Yes/No)  Tobias (Yes/No) 

Action(s) to be taken: 

Page 3 of 75



MINUTES 

Oakdale, California 
February 6, 2024 

The Board of Directors of the Oakdale Irrigation District invited all to recite the Pledge of Allegiance and 
then met in Session at the hour of 9:00 a.m. Upon roll call, there were present: 

Directors: Tom Orvis, President 
Brad DeBoer, Vice President 
Linda Santos 
Herman Doornenbal 
Ed Tobias 

Staff Present: Scot A. Moody, General Manager/Secretary 
Sharon Cisneros, Chief Financial Officer 
Eric Thorburn, District Engineer/Water Operations Manager 
Joe Kosakiewicz, Construction and Maintenance Manager 

Also Present: Fred Silva, General Counsel  
Tim O’Laughlin, Water Counsel (Via phone) 

ACTION TO TAKE VARIOUS ITEMS OUT OF SEQUENCE 

There were no items taken out of sequence. 

At the hour of 9:04 a.m., the Board welcomed public comment regarding the Consent Calendar or 
anything not on the Action Calendar. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

There was no public comment. 

Public Comment closed at 9:04 a.m. and the Board Meeting continued. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
ITEM NOS. 1-6 

1 Approve the Board of Directors Minutes of the Regular Meeting of January 16, 2024 

2 Approve Oakdale Irrigation District’s Statement of Obligations 

 3 Approve the Treasurer’s Report for the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

4 Approve Discharge Agreement on the Riverbank Lateral (APN:  063-028-024 – Sconza 
Candy Company) 

5 Approve Storm Drainage Agreement on the Langworth Pipeline (APN: 062-010-026 – 
Gordon Braker Plumbing Contractor, Inc.) 

Page 4 of 75



6 Approve Storm Drainage Agreement on the Reed Pond (APN: 006-012-081 – River Oak 
Grace Church) 

A motion was made by Director Deboer, and seconded by Director Doornenbal, to approve the above- 
noted Consent Calendar Items #1 through 6: 

Director Orvis  Yes 
Director DeBoer Yes 
Director Santos Yes 
Director Tobias Yes 
Director Doornenbal Yes 

The motion passed by a 5-0 vote. 

Observing no online members of the Public or members of the Public in the audience, the Board 
proceeded to Action Calendar accordingly. 

ACTION CALENDAR 
ITEM NOS. 7 and 8 

Item No. 7 

Review and take possible action to Adopt a Resolution to Consider a One-Year Forbearance 
to Allow Unused Water Purchased in 2023 to be Made Available During the 2024 Irrigation 
Season 

A motion was made by Director Doornenbal, and seconded by Director Deboer, to:  Adopt a 
Resolution to Consider a One-Year Forbearance to Allow Unused Water Purchased in 2023 to be 
Made Available During the 2024 Irrigation Season: 

At the hour of 9:17 a.m., the Board welcomed public comment on Item 7. 

Director Tobias mentioned that he sees this as a growing pain that OID did not quite see as being 
negotiated.  Director Tobias mentioned that he would like to see staff look at some of the comments 
and see if there are avenues that we can take for next year and come up with a fair way that would 
represent the District as well as the landowners and to make things work better for both OID and the 
landowners.  He feels 2023 is a good deal and that there will always be bumps in the road for the 
District and landowners. 

Julia Stornetta with Stanislaus East Mutual Water Company addressed the board regarding the price 
increase and expressed her view regarding problems with capacity on the OID side.  Ms. Stornetta 
requested that the Board take these capacity constraints into consideration on the OID side and also 
requested that the Board consider carrying forward. 

Landowner, Louis Brichetto, Jr. addressed the Board and explained that he has two properties in the 
10-year.  His biggest issue is that he would like to see this continue past the 2024 year and that OID
would continue to be lenient.  Mr. Brichetto also stated there are issues with the lateral, delivery and
with PG&E.  He is on the Paulsell Lateral and there are capacity constraints that the District is trying
to remedy and he shares those constraints with other landowners.

Landowner, Louis Brichetto expressed that everybody likes the idea of taking care of the Basin, but 
if the bar keeps getting raised higher and higher, it’s not doing it.  There needs to be flexibility every 
year, whether it’s a constraint on OID side.  Recharge the basin. That’s the main goal.  As an in-

Page 5 of 75



district guy and out of district guy, I’m sitting on a teeter-totter.  If it’s all about the Basin, maybe there 
needs to be a balancing act there. 

Director Deboer expressed his views that Item No. 7 is a great compromise.  This is the first year 
getting through the process and this item seems fair to both landowners and the District. 

Public Comment closed at 9:29 a.m. on Item 7 and the Board Meeting continued. 

Director Santos mentioned the constraints of supply for building out the projects is something that is 
out of the landowner’s control.  She expressed her view that giving consideration is necessary, as the 
same thing could happen for OID projects. 

Attorney Silva pointed out that the Resolution on the Agenda that is being considered deals with the 
2023 season and that all of the comments thus far deal with what could happen in the future and so 
forth and are speculation about what could happen. 

Director Orvis suggested having the Water Committee do a 10-year program review and also directed 
the General Manager and staff to be prepared to do a year-end review.  We can’t go on making 
adjustments forever. 

Director Tobias expressed that what we passed in 2023 seemed like a good deal but then there is 
always going to be bumps in the road for the District and landowners.  He believes there is an 
opportunity to iron things out and make this thing work better. 

Director Orvis  Yes 
Director DeBoer Yes 
Director Santos Yes 
Director Tobias Yes 
Director Doornenbal Yes 

The motion passed by a 5-0 vote. 

Item No. 8 

Review and take possible action to Approve the Revised Employee 2024 Unrepresented 
Salary and Wage Schedules Effective January 14, 2024 

A motion was made by Director Deboer, and seconded by Director Santos, to approve the Revised 
Employee 2024 Unrepresented Salary and Wage Schedules Effective January 14, 2024, as 
amended: 

Director Tobias mentioned that Item No. 8 was looked over in Committee and it was brought back 
to the Board for final approval. 

Chief Financial Officer Cisneros informed the Board that the last position noted on the Board 
Agenda Report was inadvertently listed as “Water Utilities Supervisor” instead of “Water 
Operations Supervisor,” yet the correct title was listed on the attached salary schedule. 

At the hour of 9:39 a.m., the Board welcomed public comment. 

Public Comment closed at 9:40 a.m. and the Board Meeting continued. 

Page 6 of 75



Director Orvis  Yes 
Director DeBoer Yes 
Director Santos Yes 
Director Tobias Yes 
Director Doornenbal Yes 

The motion passed by a 5-0 vote. 

COMMUNICATIONS 
ITEM NOS. 9-12 

Item No. 9 
Directors’ Comments/Suggestions 

Director Deboer: 

Director Deboer mentioned that he thinks we need to get the Farm Bureau to print some signs, 
“Please hold the wind back.”  He likes the rain and we need the snow up in the mountains, but he 
wanted to acknowledge and appreciate that some OID staff stepped up when there was a complaint 
regarding flooding on Claribel Road, as well as a constituent’s assistance, and helped resolve the 
issue and hopefully Claribel Road is safer to drive. 

He prays that the prices go up and the bloom is good. 

Director Santos: 

Director Santos commented that she likes the wind and the rain.  Director Santos also expressed 
her appreciation that there was audience participation for today’s board meeting.  She also 
mentioned that she is glad that she is not out working in the field. 

Prior to continuing Director’s Comments, Landowner Louis Brichetto requested to add something to 
his public comments.  Mr. Brichetto mentioned that there was lots of discussion at the Water 
Committee Meeting and therefore most landowners did not feel like they had to repeat themselves 
by attending today’s meeting. In the future he will encourage the landowners to attend and express 
their views. 

Director Doornenbal: 

No comments were made by Director Doornenbal. 

Director Tobias: 

Director Tobias expressed his appreciation for the input and wants to see a nice product.  He 
appreciates the work staff has done.   

Director Tobias mentioned that he hopes to have a good season ahead of us and he loves the almond 
trees when they start getting flowers and is looking forward to a good bloom. 

Director Orvis: 

Director Orvis mentioned that a lot of cleanup and maintenance is getting done by Eric and Joe’s 
crews due to the recent storms. 

Page 7 of 75



Director Orvis expressed his appreciation to Mr. Brichetto and stated he has been told that there 
was good conversation between staff, landowners and the Board members that were present.  

Director Orvis also mentioned that he, Mr. Brichetto and Director Tobias attended the Water 
Committee of Stanislaus County and SGMA is going to get interesting. 

Item No. 10 
Committee Reports 

Director Tobias stated that he attended the Water Engineering Committee meeting where they 
discussed the rehab and redrilling of two ag wells and one domestic well.  Good discussion.  Eric and 
Joe B. did a good job presenting regarding Improvement District 1.      

Director Tobias mentioned that yesterday the Tri-Dam Advisory Committee met regarding property 
leasing at Tulloch and the ongoing weed issues. 

Director Tobias mentioned he will be assisting Summer regarding the aquatic weed issue. 

GM Moody added that he and Eric requested to meet with the Water Committee in order to have a 
sounding board regarding what the engineer was adding to the design of the wells. 

Item No. 11 
General Manager’s report on the status of OID activities 

GM Moody thanked staff for their clarifications and corrections. 

GM Moody mentioned that there were a couple of SGMA meetings held over the last several weeks. 

GM Moody attended Oakdale’s State of the City last week.  He was impressed with the food and 
mentioned that OID received an honorable mention due to their partnership with the City and using 
surface water in the parks. 

Eric and GM Moody met with OID’s consultants who are working on our water budget. 

GM Moody informed the Board that he is not putting the start of water season into the Agenda at this 
stage. 

GM Moody mentioned that the Greger facility work is going out to bid tomorrow.  He is guessing that 
there will be a one-year time frame from when they break ground to completion and hoping that the 
bids come in lower than expected. 

At 9:55 a.m., President Orvis read the items to be discussed in closed session and opened for public 
comment on these items.  President Orvis read the items to be discussed in closed session and also 
stated the next Board meeting for both OID and Tri-Dam and opened for public comment on these 
items. 

Item No. 12 
Water Counsel Report 

Water Counsel expressed that his report would be addressed in Closed Session. 

Page 8 of 75



At the hour of 9:59 a.m., the Board took a recess and reconvened to closed session at 10:15 a.m. 

CLOSED SESSION 
ITEM NO. 13 and 14 

 13 Government Code §54956.9(d)(2) – Potential Exposure to Litigation 

 14 Government Code §54957(b)(1) – Personnel Evaluation 

At the hour of 11:42 a.m. the Board reconvened to Open Session.  

Coming out of Closed Session, President Orvis stated there were no reportable actions. 

OTHER ACTION 

At the hour of 11:43 a.m. the meeting was adjourned.  

The next Board Meeting of the Oakdale Irrigation District Board of Directors is scheduled for 
Tuesday, March 5, 2024, at 9:00 a.m. Details can be obtained by calling (209) 847-0341. 

The next Joint Board Meeting of the South San Joaquin and Oakdale Irrigation Districts serving the 
Tri-Dam Project and Tri-Dam Authority and other joint business matters is scheduled for Thursday, 
February 15, 2024, at 9:00 a.m. at the South San Joaquin Irrigation District, 11011 East Highway 
120, Manteca, California. 

___________________________ 
Thomas D. Orvis, President 

Attest: Board of Directors 

____________________________ 
Scot A. Moody 
General Manager/Secretary  

Page 9 of 75



BOARD AGENDA REPORT 

Date:  March 05, 2024 
Item Number: 2 
APN:   N/A 

SUBJECT:  APPROVE OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT’S STATEMENT OF OBLIGATIONS 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Statement of Obligations 

TOP TEN OBLIGATIONS 

Vendor Purpose       Amount 

Sierra Mountain Construction, Inc. North Main Canal Improvements – December   $ 1,272,129.52 

South San Joaquin Irrigation District WO# 1086 and WR# 1902 444,449.63 

Foley Products Company LLC Concrete Pipe 293,977.35 

City of Oakdale Permit Fees 259,574.93 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group WR# 040, WR# 043, WR# 045 and WR# 046 180,520.04 

IRS Payroll Taxes 126,881.94 

UPL NA Inc. Cascade 88,939.32 

CalPERS Retirement Contribution 87,020.91 

Howk Systems WR# 001 and WR# 002 68,088.85 

F&M Bank December 2023 Retention 66,954.20 

Sutter Health Plus Healthcare Insurance – March 52,390.94 

FISCAL IMPACT:  $3,465,351.87 

ATTACHMENTS:  
➢ Statement of Obligations – Check Register

Board Motion: 

Motion by: ___________________________  Second by: ______________________________ 

VOTE: 
DeBoer (Yes/No)  Doornenbal (Yes/No)  Orvis (Yes/No)  Santos (Yes/No)  Tobias (Yes/No) 

Action(s) to be taken: 

Other Obligations: 524,424.24 

  Total Obligations:  $ 3,465,351.87 

Page 10 of 75



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

STATEMENT

OF 

OBLIGATIONS

03/05/2024

Page 11 of 75



Accounts Payable Oakdale Irrigation District

Check Register - January 29, 2024 - February 26, 2024 1205 East F Street
Oakdale, CA  95361

Description

129241 1/29/2024 Modesto Irrigation District 241.77$    Electricity - January

34397 1/30/2024 City of Oakdale 259,574.93 Permit Fees

34398 1/30/2024 F&M Bank 66,954.20 December 2023 Retention

34399 1/30/2024 Sierra Mountain Construction, Inc. 1,272,129.52        North Main Canal Improvements - December

130241 1/30/2024 Samba Holdings, Inc. 202.52 Fleet Watch - December

202241 2/2/2024 Internal Revenue Service 62,492.19 Payroll Taxes

202242 2/2/2024 VOYA Retirement 13,724.08 Retirement Contribution

202243 2/2/2024 ICMA Retirement 2,425.99 Retirement Contribution

202244 2/2/2024 California Public Employees' Retirement System 43,126.00 Retirement Contribution

202245 2/2/2024 Employment Development Department 11,763.72 Payroll Taxes

34400 2/5/2024 711 Materials, Inc. 1,370.58 SK Blend

34401 2/5/2024 Ace Hardware 543.42 Chlorine, Utility Brushes and Ratchet

34402 2/5/2024 Airgas USA, LLC 1,204.50 Argon, Oxygen, Acetylene and Welding Jackets

34403 2/5/2024 Amazon Capital Services 3,786.13 Construction Rigs, Silicone, Adapters, Converters and Safety Glasses

34404 2/5/2024 Ameriflex 1,633.31 FSA-125

34405 2/5/2024 BG Agri Sales & Service 1,090.61 Electric Starter

34406 2/5/2024 Bobcat Central, Inc. 377.60 Alternator

34407 2/5/2024 California State Disbursement Unit 533.53 Levy

34408 2/5/2024 Casey Records Management 96.00 Shredding - January

34409 2/5/2024 Central Irrigation Inc. 48.55 Coupler

34410 2/5/2024 Central Valley Ag Grinding, Inc. 53.00 Green Waste - January

34411 2/5/2024 Chicago Title Co. 76.00 Refund For: 6460 Lon Dale Rd Oakdale

34412 2/5/2024 Chicago Title Co. 28.72 Refund: 2906 Tioga Ave. Oakdale

34413 2/5/2024 City of Oakdale Utilites 1,505.14 Water Usage 12/07/23 - 01/05/24

34414 2/5/2024 Coffee Break Service, Inc. 275.01 Coffee Services

34415 2/5/2024 Consumers Choice Pest Control 85.00 Pest Control Services

34416 2/5/2024 Cutting Edge Supply 664.72 Bucket Pins

34417 2/5/2024 Ellis Self Storage, Inc. 101.00 Storage - February

34418 2/5/2024 EPLUS Technology, Inc. 1,195.84 Software Maintenance Support 01/08/24 - 05/07/25

34419 2/5/2024 Far West Laboratories, Inc. 6,543.00 Bac-T and Water Samples - November

34420 2/5/2024 Fastenal Company 4,295.36 Cutting Wheels, Flap Disks, Batteries, Drill Bits and Coolers

34421 2/5/2024 Foley Products Company LLC 287,344.80 Concrete Pipe

34422 2/5/2024 Frasco Profiles 61.05 Background Check

34423 2/5/2024 Fresno Valves & Castings, Inc. 19,075.50 Slide Gates

34424 2/5/2024 GAR Bennett, LLC 3,565.67 Elbows and Adapter

34425 2/5/2024 George Reed, Inc. 16,123.45 Crushed 3/4", AB-CL II and Ballast

34426 2/5/2024 Grating Pacific, Inc. 6,278.33 Grates

34427 2/5/2024 Grover Landscape Services, Inc. 567.10 Landscaping Services - January

34428 2/5/2024 Haidlen Ford 784.95 Seat Belt and Throttle Assy. Housing

34429 2/5/2024 Holthouse Ranch, LLC 3,884.40 Exchange For Grant of Easement

34430 2/5/2024 Hunt & Sons Inc. 14,141.86 Fuel

34431 2/5/2024 I.J. Larsen Pumps, Inc. 6,033.75 WR# 001

34432 2/5/2024 Krohne Inc. 16,707.34 Krohne Enviromag Flow Sensors and Converters

34433 2/5/2024 Liebert Cassidy Whitmore 196.00 Personnel Rules Update 2022

34434 2/5/2024 Lincoln National Life Insurance Company 623.70 Life Insurance - February

34435 2/5/2024 Lundell, Clint 576.00 Health and Wellness Reimbursement - Jan-Dec 2023

34436 2/5/2024 May Irrigation 7,066.60 Concrete Box Structures

34437 2/5/2024 McMaster-Carr 178.40 Screws

34438 2/5/2024 Mission Uniform Service 1,284.20 Uniform Services

34439 2/5/2024 Modesto Steel Company, Inc. 5,533.42 Grating Sheets, Flat Bars and Tubing Squares 

34440 2/5/2024 Moody, Scot 174.95 Health and Wellness Reimbursement August - December 2023

34441 2/5/2024 Moore Quality Galvanizing L.P. 1,415.48 Galvanized Tubes, Pipes and Door Frame

34442 2/5/2024 Morrill Industries, Inc. 10,658.79 Gaskets, Couplers and Adapters

34443 2/5/2024 MRC Global (US) Inc. 4,253.50 Shop Service to Repair

34444 2/5/2024 Next Level Parts, Inc. 221.33 Battery and Brake Pads

34445 2/5/2024 Oak Valley Hospital District 75.00 DOT Medical Exam

34446 2/5/2024 ODP Business Solutions LLC 1,335.78 Office Supplies

34447 2/5/2024 Ontel Security Services, Inc. 275.00 Security Monitoring - January

34448 2/5/2024 P&D Ventures Inc. 2,383.21 Janitorial Services - February

34449 2/5/2024 Pape Kenworth 370.37 Filter, Lights and Horn

34450 2/5/2024 Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group, Inc. 180,520.04 WR# 040, WR# 043, WR# 045 and WR# 046

34451 2/5/2024 Rubicon, Inc. 3,772.45 Wire Rope Drum Assy. and LCDDisplays

34452 2/5/2024 Safe-T-Lite of Modesto, Inc. 54.49 Waffle Board

34453 2/5/2024 Savemart Supermarkets 41.16 Breakfast For Tunnel Tour

Check No

Check 

Date Vendor Name Amount

1
Page 12 of 75



Accounts Payable Oakdale Irrigation District

Check Register - January 29, 2024 - February 26, 2024 1205 East F Street
Oakdale, CA  95361

DescriptionCheck No

Check 

Date Vendor Name Amount

34454 2/5/2024 Skokan, David 43.34 2-Way Radio Reimbursement

34455 2/5/2024 South San Joaquin Irrigation District 444,449.63 WO# 1086 and WR# 1902

34456 2/5/2024 Springbrook Holding Company, LLC 155.00 Civic Pay - December

34457 2/5/2024 Stanislaus County Auditor-Controller 903.50 Encroachment Permit

34458 2/5/2024 Steve Harkrader Trucking 13,572.50 Dirt Hauling Services

34459 2/5/2024 Streamline 497.00 Member Web Services - February

34460 2/5/2024 Tim O'Laughlin A Professional Law Corporation 4,275.00 Legal Matters

34461 2/5/2024 TP Express 2,475.00 Regular Portable  and Single Towable Restrooms - February

34462 2/5/2024 Tri-West Tractor Incorporated 1,726.22 Grip Assy. 

34463 2/5/2024 UBEO Business Services 591.78 Copier Usage

34464 2/5/2024 United Rentals Northwest, Inc. 2,861.03 Message Board Solar, Roller and Concrete Rental

34465 2/5/2024 UPL NA Inc. 88,939.32 Cascade

34466 2/5/2024 Valley Ag Water Coalition 3,500.00 2024 Membership Dues

34467 2/5/2024 Valley Tire Sales, Inc. 3,456.30 Tires and Mounting

34468 2/5/2024 Walsh, John 44.99 Health and Wellness Reimbursement - January 2023

34469 2/5/2024 WC Maloney, Inc. 930.00 WR# 05

34470 2/5/2024 White Cap Construction Supply 6,299.53 Waterstop, Stakes and Lumber

34471 2/5/2024 Wille Electric Supply Co., Inc. 446.28 Ballasts and Light Bulbs

206241 2/6/2024 Internal Revenue Service 1,009.56 Payroll Taxes

206242 2/6/2024 Employment Development Department 35.12 Payroll Taxes

208244 2/8/2024 Visa 6,473.25 Arc Flash Electrical Safety Course, CPR/AED/Basic Training

Heavy Equipment Trainee Guides and Air Resources Board Renewal

209241 2/9/2024 Clover Services 44.95 Clover Merchant Fees Feb24

213241 2/13/2024 AmeriFlex 284.50 FSA Admin Fees - December

34472 2/16/2024 711 Materials, Inc. 3,274.00 Concrete

34473 2/16/2024 Ace Hardware 177.09 Fastener, Chlorine and Elbows

34474 2/16/2024 ACWA-JPIA 9,780.98 Dental and Vision Insurance - March

34475 2/16/2024 Airgas USA, LLC 28.83 Lens

34476 2/16/2024 All Rigging Company 741.21 Shackles

34477 2/16/2024 Amazon Capital Services 5,266.80 Eco-Worthy 12V 30A Battery

34478 2/16/2024 Ameriflex 1,633.31 FSA-125

34479 2/16/2024 Asbury Environmental Services 100.00 Used Oil Service Charge

34480 2/16/2024 AT&T Mobility 118.40 Cell Phone Charges - January

34481 2/16/2024 Baker, Samuel 450.00 Small Claim Payout

34482 2/16/2024 BG Agri Sales & Service 970.88 Spray Hose

34483 2/16/2024 Boutin Jones, Inc. 1,421.20 Legal Matters

34484 2/16/2024 Brady Industries 637.01 Paper Towels, Wipes and Tissue Paper

34485 2/16/2024 California Farm Water Coalition 4,500.00 2024 Membership

34486 2/16/2024 California State Disbursement Unit 533.53 Levy

34487 2/16/2024 CalNeva Water 5,895.00 Legal Matters

34488 2/16/2024 Central Irrigation Inc. 136.86 Caps

34489 2/16/2024 City of Oakdale Utilites 448.74 Water Usage 12/06/23 - 01/05/24

34490 2/16/2024 C.J. Brown & Company, CPA's 1,250.00 2022 Preparation of the State Controller's Report

34491 2/16/2024 Colonial Life 2,443.46 Supplemental Insurance - January

34492 2/16/2024 Comcast Business 1,393.64 Office Phone Charges - February

34493 2/16/2024 Comcast 532.52 Analog Lines, TV and Internet - February

34494 2/16/2024 CoreLogic Solutions, LLC 309.51 Real Quest - January

34495 2/16/2024 Core & Main LP 2,484.05 Relief Valves

34496 2/16/2024 Davids Engineering, Inc. 25,768.50 WR# 015

34497 2/16/2024 Environmental.com, LLC 418.00 Bac-T Tests

34498 2/16/2024 Far West Laboratories, Inc. 7,543.00 Bac-T and Title Samples

34499 2/16/2024 First Choice Industrial Supply Inc. 481.13 Gloves

34500 2/16/2024 Foley Products Company LLC 6,632.55 Concrete Pipe

34501 2/16/2024 Fresno Valves & Castings, Inc. 1,722.58 YW Inline Gate   

34502 2/16/2024 GAR Bennett, LLC 34,294.44 Reducers, Pipe, Tees and Elbows

34503 2/16/2024 George Reed, Inc. 700.31 Rip Rap and Crushed 3/4"

34504 2/16/2024 Gilton Resource Recovery Transfer Facility, Inc. 898.30 Solid Waste - January

34505 2/16/2024 Gilton Solid Waste Management, Inc. 1,028.73 Refuse Charge - January

34506 2/16/2024 Grainger 419.43 Drill Screws and Rotary Hammer Kit

34507 2/16/2024 Green Rubber-Kennedy Ag 774.69 Neoprene Sheets

34508 2/16/2024 Haidlen Ford 16,073.76 Body Damage Repair and Alternator Assy.

34509 2/16/2024 Howk Systems 68,088.85 WR# 001 and WR#002

34510 2/16/2024 Hughson Farm Supply 860.26 Muffler Kit, Bearing Housing and Pulley Assy.

34511 2/16/2024 Hunt & Sons Inc. 9,333.44 Fuel

2
Page 13 of 75



Accounts Payable Oakdale Irrigation District

Check Register - January 29, 2024 - February 26, 2024 1205 East F Street
Oakdale, CA  95361

DescriptionCheck No

Check 

Date Vendor Name Amount

34512 2/16/2024 Interstate Truck Center 402.28 Filters

34513 2/16/2024 International Mailing Equipment, Inc. 298.03 Ink For Postage Machine

34514 2/16/2024 Jorgensen Company 1,164.64 Gas Detector Repair

34515 2/16/2024 Kaiser Foundation Health Plan, Inc. 52,144.11 Healthcare Insurance - March

34516 2/16/2024 Ketchum Jr., Castle 295.50 Cross-Connection Control Specialist Travel Expense

34517 2/16/2024 Krohne Inc. 25,337.04 Flow Meters and Converters

34518 2/16/2024 Les Schwab, Inc 328.60 Tires

34519 2/16/2024 The McClatchy Company, LLC 1,620.00 Online Recruitment Ad - C&M/DSO Worker and IT Support Tech

34520 2/16/2024 Mission Uniform Service 503.36 Uniform Services

34521 2/16/2024 Modesto Steel Company, Inc. 985.44 Pipe

34522 2/16/2024 Moore Quality Galvanizing L.P. 2,410.57 Galvanized Beans, Angles and Pipe Rail

34523 2/16/2024 Morgan, McKenzie 50.00 2024 FFA Donation 

34524 2/16/2024 Morrill Industries, Inc. 6,713.30 Gaskets, Valves, Elbows and Couplers

34525 2/16/2024 Next Level Parts, Inc. 846.53 Batteries, Filters and Terminals

34526 2/16/2024 Northern Steel, Inc. 4,310.00 WR# 068

34527 2/16/2024 Oakdale Lions Club 200.00 2024 Memorial Run Donation

34528 2/16/2024 Oakdale Golf & County Club, Inc. 121.94 Post Board Meeting Luncheons

34529 2/16/2024 Oakdale Leader 272.70 Greger Facility - Notice To Invite Bid

34530 2/16/2024 Oakdale Sober Grad Night Committee 250.00 2024 Sober Grad Night Donation

34531 2/16/2024 ODP Business Solutions LLC 370.62 Office Supplies

34532 2/16/2024 Operating Engineers Union Local No. 3 3,312.00 Union Dues

34533 2/16/2024 Pape Kenworth 454.64 Light Assembly

34534 2/16/2024 P & L Concrete Products, Inc. 184.01 Concrete

34535 2/16/2024 Portola Systems, Inc. 645.00 Microsoft 365 Monthly Subscription - January

34536 2/16/2024 Quikrete - Sacramento 3,850.94 TID and Redi-Mix

34537 2/16/2024 Resource Building Materials 226.54 Redi Mix

34538 2/16/2024 Rodgers, Matthew 26.20 Mileage Reimbursement

34539 2/16/2024 Savemart Supermarkets 23.81 Tunnel Tour Brunch Items

34540 2/16/2024 Soroptimist International Of Oakdale 500.00 2024 Dream Catcher Sponsor

34541 2/16/2024 Springbrook Holding Company, LLC 157.00 Civic Pay - January

34542 2/16/2024 Stanislaus County Farm Bureau 500.00 2024 Table Sponsor

34543 2/16/2024 Stanislaus County Safety Council 330.00 2024 Membership Fee

34544 2/16/2024 Steve Harkrader Trucking 61.00 Hauling Dirt Services

34545 2/16/2024 Sutter Health Plus 52,390.94 Healthcare Insurance -March

34546 2/16/2024 UNKE, Inc. 600.00 Concrete

34547 2/16/2024 Valley Tire Sales, Inc. 2,464.60 Tires

34548 2/16/2024 Verizon Wireless 2,462.10 Cell Phone and Ipad Charges - January

34549 2/16/2024 Verizon 1,498.95 Vehicle Tracking Services - January

34550 2/16/2024 White Cap Construction Supply 536.15 Snap Ties

34551 2/16/2024 Wienhoff Drug Testing, Inc. 3,145.00 2024 Consortium Membership

34552 2/16/2024 Wille Electric Supply Co., Inc. 1,229.23 Conduit Sweeps, Ballasts and Lights

216241 2/16/2024 Internal Revenue Service 63,380.19 Payroll Taxes

216242 2/16/2024 VOYA Retirement 13,948.26 Retirement Contribution

216243 2/16/2024 ICMA Retirement 2,419.81 Retirement Contribution

216244 2/16/2024 California Public Employees' Retirement System 43,894.91 Retirement Contribution

216245 2/16/2024 Employment Development Department 11,885.13 Payroll Taxes

222241 2/22/2024 AmeriFlex 302.00 FSA Admin Fees - January

3,465,351.87$     

3
Page 14 of 75



THE FOREGOING CLAIMS, NUMBERED 34397 THROUGH 34552, 129241, 130241, 

202241 THROUGH 202245, 206241 THROUGH 206242, 208241, 209241, 213241, 

216241 THROUGH 216245, 222241. INCLUSIVE ARE APPLIED TO THE GENERAL 

FUND OF OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT AND ARE OBLIGATIONS AUTHORIZED 

THERETO.

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF OBLIGATIONS

3/05/2024

Page 15 of 75



BOARD AGENDA REPORT 
Date:  March 5, 2024 
Item Number: 3 
APN:   N/A 

SUBJECT:  APPROVE OID IMPROVEMENT DISTRICTS’ STATEMENT OF OBLIGATIONS 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve OID Improvement Districts’ Statement of Obligations 

Vendor Purpose       Amount 
Oakdale Irrigation District December O & M Expenses $      31,139.24 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  $31,139.24 

ATTACHMENTS:  
 Statement of Obligations – Accounts Payable

Board Motion: 

Motion by: ___________________________  Second by: ______________________________ 

VOTE: 
DeBoer (Yes/No)  Doornenbal (Yes/No)  Orvis (Yes/No)  Santos (Yes/No)  Tobias (Yes/No) 

Action(s) to be taken: 

Total Obligations:  $    31,139.24 

Page 16 of 75



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 0168

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT ACCOUNT

DATE: 2/13/2024 TO:  Oakdale Irrigation District
MAINTENANCE PAYABLE 

December December

I.D. # O & M Expense I.D. # O & M Expense 

1 31 Note:  

2 36 Included Misc.

8 38 Recon. Items

13 41 7,017.36

19 24.70 45 10,615.28

20 46 7,277.41

21 48 96.90

22 2,315.35 51 3,761.05

26 52

29 31.19

SUB-TOTAL $2,371.24 SUB-TOTAL $28,768.00 SUB-TOTAL $0.00

VOUCHER CHARGES

Maintenance & Operations $31,139.24

Prepaid Expense $0.00

TOTAL AMOUNT $31,139.24

Page 17 of 75



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICTS

STATEMENT OF OBLIGATIONS

CHECK

NO. PAYABLE TO:  AMOUNT DATE

168 OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 31,139.24$    02/13/2024

GENERAL FUNDS OF THE OAKDALE IRRIGATION'S IMPROVEMENT 

DISTRICTS AND ARE AUTHORIZED THERETO.

FOR JANUARY 1, 2024 - FEBRUARY 13, 2024

  THE FOREGOING CLAIM NUMBERED 0168 WERE APPLIED TO 

Page 18 of 75



BOARD AGENDA REPORT 
Date:    March 5, 2024 
Item Number:  4 
APN:   N/A 

SUBJECT: APPROVE THE TREASURER’S REPORT AS OF JANUARY 31, 2024 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve the Treasurer’s Report as of January 31, 2024 

BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY: 

The Treasurer’s report provides the total Treasury and Improvement District Funds as of January 31, 
2024.  The month ended with $66.1 million in designated reserves, $1.6 million in restricted cash and 
$6.6 million in operating cash.   

Additional information is provided within the attached reports. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  None 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 Treasurer’s Report

Board Motion: 

Motion by: ___________________________ Second by: ______________________________ 

VOTE 

DeBoer (Yes/No) Doornenbal (Yes/No) Orvis (Yes/No)  Santos (Yes/No)  Tobias (Yes/No)   

Action(s) to be taken: 

Page 19 of 75



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

TREASURER'S REPORT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING
JANUARY 31, 2024

Page 20 of 75



TREASURER'S REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF FUNDS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING JANUARY 31, 2024

PERIOD ENDING 1/31/2024 RATE 12/31/2023 NET CHANGE

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT FUNDS

LAIF $180,156.28 4.012% $177,212.72 $2,943.56 

OAK VALLEY COMMUNITY BANK CHECKING 0.00 1,410,548.54 (1,410,548.54)

OVCB BUSINESS PLUS SAVINGS 5,951,476.92 8,306,340.02 (2,354,863.10)

US BANK 66,548,473.81 4.140% 66,345,429.49 203,044.32 

TOTAL TREASURY FUNDS 72,680,107.01 76,239,530.77 (3,559,423.76)

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT FUNDS

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT'S FUNDS 1,585,018.34 1,461,429.82 123,588.52 

TOTAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT FUNDS 1,585,018.34 1,461,429.82 123,588.52 

TOTAL TREASURY AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT FUNDS $74,265,125.35 $77,700,960.59 ($3,435,835.24)

Page 21 of 75



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

DISTRICT CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1/31/2024 1/31/2023 NET CHANGE

Beginning Balance:  1/1/2024 $76,239,530.77

Receipts / Earnings / Transfers 2,858,342.51

Expenditures / Transfers (6,417,766.27)

TOTAL DISTRICT TREASURY FUNDS ON HAND: 1/31/2024 $72,680,107.01 $75,018,473.86 ($2,338,366.85)

GENERAL FUND

Beginning Balance:  1/1/2024 $10,150,967.75
RECEIPTS / EARNINGS
Net Investment Income 217,882.19
Collection Receipts 2,640,460.32

Total Receipts: 2,858,342.51
EXPENDITURES
Accounts Payable 6,086,693.00
Payroll 331,073.27

Total Expenditures: (6,417,766.27)

BALANCE ON HAND: $6,591,543.99 $20,337,292.30 ($13,745,748.31)

DESIGNATED FUNDS:

JOINT CANYON TUNNEL PROJECT RESERVE

Beginning Balance:  1/1/2024 $14,474,566.76

Transfer from General Fund 0.00

Transfer Funds to General Fund 0.00

BALANCE ON HAND: $14,474,566.76 $14,474,566.76 $0.00

CAPITAL REPLACEMENT / IMPROVEMENT RESERVE

Beginning Balance:  1/1/2024 $17,759,975.25

Transfer from General Fund 0.00

Transfer to General Fund 0.00

BALANCE ON HAND: $17,759,975.25 $10,559,975.25 $7,200,000.00

DEBT SERVICE RESERVE - maximum $21,145,000

Beginning Balance:  1/1/2024 $13,000,000.00

Transfer from General Fund 0.00

Transfer Funds to General Fund 0.00

BALANCE ON HAND: $13,000,000.00 $13,000,000.00 $0.00

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING JANUARY 31, 2024

1/31/2024

1/31/2024

Page 22 of 75



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

DISTRICT CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1/31/2024 1/31/2023 NET CHANGE

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING JANUARY 31, 2024

OPERATING FACILITY PROJECT RESERVE

Beginning Balance:  1/1/2024 $12,953,355.86

Transfer from General Fund 0.00

Transfer Funds to General Fund 0.00

BALANCE ON HAND: $12,953,355.86 $10,453,355.86 $2,500,000.00

MUNICIPAL CONSERVATIONPROJECT RESERVE

Beginning Balance:  1/1/2024 $7,381.46

Transfer from General Fund 0.00

Transfer Funds to General Fund 0.00

BALANCE ON HAND: $7,381.46 $0.00 $7,381.46

RATE STABILIZATION AND OPERATIONS DESIGNATED RESERVE 

Beginning Balance:  1/1/2024 $2,507,937.96

Transfer from General Fund 0.00

Transfer Funds to General Fund 0.00

BALANCE ON HAND: $2,507,937.96 $2,507,937.96 $0.00

RURAL WATER SYSTEM CAPITAL REPLACEMENT / IMPROVEMENT RESERVE

Beginning Balance:  1/1/2024 $1,160,211.76

Transfer from General Fund 0.00

Transfer to General Fund 0.00

BALANCE ON HAND: $1,160,211.76 $1,160,211.76 $0.00

VEHICLE AND EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT RESERVE 

Beginning Balance:  1/1/2024 $2,190,836.93

Transfer from General Fund 0.00

Transfer Funds to General Fund 0.00

BALANCE ON HAND: $2,190,836.93 $490,836.93 $1,700,000.00

BUILDING AND FACILITIES IMPROVEMENT PROJECT RESERVE

Beginning Balance:  1/1/2024 $1,025,000.00

Transfer from General Fund 0.00

Transfer to General Fund 0.00

BALANCE ON HAND: $1,025,000.00 $1,025,000.00 $0.00

EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION ABSENCES RESERVE

Beginning Balance:  1/1/2024 $1,009,297.04

Transfer from General Fund 0.00

Transfer to General Fund 0.00

BALANCE ON HAND: $1,009,297.04 $1,009,297.04 $0.00

1/31/2024

1/31/2024

1/31/2024

1/31/2024
Page 23 of 75



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

DISTRICT CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1/31/2024 1/31/2023 NET CHANGE

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING JANUARY 31, 2024

RESTRICTED FUNDS

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT'S FUNDS

Beginning Balance:  1/1/2024 $1,461,429.82

Receipts 123,598.52

Expenditures (10.00)

BALANCE ON HAND: $1,585,018.34 $1,594,410.69 ($9,392.35)

FILED:  February 29, 2024 STATE OF CALIFORNIA / COUNTY OF STANISLAUS

1/31/2024

Page 24 of 75



BOARD AGENDA REPORT 
Date:   March 5, 2024 
Item Number:  5 
APN:  063-029-075

SUBJECT: APPROVE RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ABANDONMENT AND QUITCLAIM 
OF A PORTION OF THE CAVILL DRAIN (APN: 063-029-075) 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve 

BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY: 
The Oakdale Irrigation District received a request to review the possibility of quitclaiming and 
abandoning a portion of the Cavill Drain located within the parcel noted above.  Staff has reviewed and 
determined that the portion of the Cavill Drain proposed to be abandoned is operationally unnecessary 
and that quitclaim and abandonment will not be detrimental to the operations of OID.  The landowners 
of the parcel noted above fully understand and accept that should OID take action to formally quitclaim 
said facility, the historic right and continued use of the facility for the conveyance of drainage and/or 
storm water by the titled owner and/or other private parties shall not be relinquished and have agreed 
to perform all of the obligations set forth in the Quitclaim Deed.  As such, OID staff recommends that 
the Board of Directors (Board) formally quitclaim and abandon said facility within the parcel noted above 
by Resolution of Abandonment and Quitclaim Deed (attached).  

FISCAL IMPACT: Staff time for document preparation. 

ATTACHMENTS:   
 Abandonment and Quitclaim Resolution – (2024-NIL)
 Quitclaim Deed

Board Motion: 

Motion by: ___________________________  Second by: ______________________________ 

VOTE: 
Orvis (Yes/No)  Doornenbal (Yes/No)  Santos (Yes/No)  DeBoer (Yes/No)  Tobias (Yes/No)  

Action(s) to be taken: 

Page 25 of 75



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-NIL 

AUTHORIZING ABANDONMENT OF A PORTION OF A DISTRICT FACILITY AND 
QUITCLAIM DEED TO 

JOHN P. BRICHETTO AND JACQUELINE BRICHETTO 

APN: 063-029-075 

WHEREAS, a portion of the Oakdale Irrigation District facility known as the Cavill Drain, 
located within the southwest 1/4 of Section 27, Township 2 South, Range 10 East, Mount 
Diablo Base and Meridian in the unincorporated area of Stanislaus County, is situated on 
the parcel noted above; and 

WHEREAS, that portion of the Cavill Drain has been reviewed by the District Engineering 
Department and Water Operations Department and determined to be operationally 
unnecessary; and 

WHEREAS, Oakdale Irrigation District has no plan to expand or modify the current use of 
the Cavill Drain and has no need to maintain said facility within the parcel noted above and 
the requested abandonment of that portion of said facility will not be detrimental to the 
irrigation operations of the Oakdale Irrigation District; and 

WHEREAS, the titled owner, JOHN P. BRICHETTO AND JACQUELINE BRICHETTO, of 
the parcel noted above understand and accept that OID’s quitclaim of said facility does not 
relinquish the historic right and continued use of the facility for the conveyance of drainage 
and/or storm water by the titled owner and/or other private parties and agrees to perform 
all of the obligations set forth in the Quitclaim Deed attached to this Resolution; and 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that any interest in that portion of the Cavill 
Drain and any associated easements or rights-of-way within said parcel and located within 
the unincorporated area of Stanislaus County, California, be quitclaimed by deed to the 
titled owner of said property, and that said Quitclaim Deed in its entirety is incorporated 
by reference and attached to this Resolution. 

Upon Motion of Director _________, seconded by Director __________, and duly 
submitted to the Board for its consideration, the above-titled Resolution was adopted 
this sixth day of February, 2024. 

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 

_______________________ 
Thomas D. Orvis, President 

________________________ 
Scot A. Moody, Secretary 

Page 26 of 75



Page 1 of 10 

RECORDING REQUESTED BY &  
WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 
1205 East F Street 
Oakdale, CA 95361 

MAIL TAX STATEMENTS TO: 

John and Jacqueline Brichetto 
P.O. Box 11600 
Oakdale, CA 95361 

APN:  063-029-075 
The undersigned declares Documentary Transfer Tax is $0.00 

QUITCLAIM DEED – (PORTION OF CAVILL DRAIN) 

THIS QUITCLAIM DEED (PORTION OF CAVILL DRAIN) (“Quitclaim Deed”), is executed this ____ day 
of ________________, 2024, by and between the OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT, an irrigation 
district organized and existing under the laws of the State of California, hereinafter referred to as the 
"DISTRICT," and JOHN P. BRICHETTO and JACQUELINE BRICHETTO, husband and wife as 
community property, hereinafter referred to as "OWNER." 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the DISTRICT owns certain easements, rights of way, and improvements known as the 
Oakdale Irrigation District Cavill Drain (hereinafter referred to as the “Cavill Drain”) a portion of 
which crosses OWNER’s real property commonly known as 5808 Bentley Road, Oakdale, 
Stanislaus County, California bearing Assessor’s Parcel Number 063-029-075 which is more 
particularly described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto (hereinafter referred to as the “Property”); and 

WHEREAS, the portion of the Cavill Drain that crosses the Property is hereafter referred to as the 
“Facility”; 

WHEREAS, the Facility was constructed for the purpose of the drainage of excess irrigation water 
from the DISTRICT’s irrigation water distribution system, storm waters, and surface run-off from the 
Property and from certain real properties adjacent to the Facility; 

WHEREAS, OWNER has requested that the DISTRICT abandon the Facility; 

WHEREAS, without diminishing or prejudicing the existing rights and present and future uses of the 
Facility (as currently configured and as may be modified by OWNER), by OWNER or any third 
party, the DISTRICT is willing to quitclaim all of the DISTRICT’s right, title, and interest in the 

Page 27 of 75



Page 2 of 10 

Facility described as the “Portion of Cavill Drain to be Abandoned” in Exhibit “B,” in consideration 
of all of the promises, covenants, and conditions set forth herein. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW THEREFORE, the parties hereto mutually agree as follows: 

1. QUITCLAIM.

The DISTRICT does hereby remise, release and forever quitclaim to the property owner of
record, John P. Brichetto and Jacqueline Brichetto, all right, title, and interest in the Facility
located on the Property and depicted in Exhibit "B”.

2. ACCEPTANCE OF THE FACILITY.

OWNER acknowledges and agrees that it takes the Facility, together with all related structures,
if any, and other improvements, in their existing condition, “as is,” with all faults, and without any
warranties or representations whatsoever by the DISTRICT, or its agents, servants, employees,
subcontractors, or anyone acting for, or on behalf of the DISTRICT, including, but not limited to,
any warranty of fitness for a particular purpose, suitability, structural soundness, or state of
repair.  Without limiting the foregoing, the parties agree that the DISTRICT’s obligations with
respect to the Facility shall terminate immediately on the execution of this Quitclaim Deed.

3. THIRD PARTY RIGHTS.

OWNER acknowledges and agrees that all owners of those certain real properties located
within the upstream tributary area generally north, east, and northeast of the Property, including,
but not limited to, that certain real property bearing Stanislaus County Assessor’s Parcel
Numbers 063-027-024/030/052 and 063-029-004/005/072/073/074 (collectively referred to
herein as  the “Neighbors”) retain all of their existing rights, if any, to drain excess irrigation
water, storm waters, and surface run-off into the Facility.  OWNER further agrees that if
OWNER relocates the Facility, during the course of any relocation of the Facility, it will not
unreasonably interfere with the Neighbor’s rights therein, if any, or permanently backfill the
Facility without the prior written consent of Neighbors adversely affected thereby.

4. IMPROVEMENTS.

a. In exercising OWNER’s rights and privileges under this Quitclaim Deed, OWNER shall
comply with any and all applicable statutes, regulations, ordinances, and/or rules, applicable
thereto, including, but not limited to, those of any Federal, State, Regional, County or other
governmental agency.

b. All improvements that constitute an alteration, modification or replacement of the Facility, (a)
shall not modify or obstruct in any adverse manner the flow of water in the DISTRICT’s
facilities, and (b) shall not make more expensive or interfere in any manner whatsoever with
the construction, operation, and maintenance of any part of the portion of the Cavill Drain
retained by the DISTRICT or any other DISTRICT facility.

c. The DISTRICT reserves the right to observe and inspect the construction, relocation,
maintenance, and repair of the Facility, including, but not limited to, such activities as

Page 28 of 75



Page 3 of 10 

trenching, backfilling, and compaction.  Any inspection of the relocation, construction, repair, 
or maintenance of the Facility is for the protection of the DISTRICT and its property and 
facilities.  The DISTRICT undertakes no obligation or duty to OWNER with regard to the 
design, construction, adequacy, sufficiency, or statutory or regulatory compliance of such 
relocation, construction, repair, or maintenance. 

5. OWNER’S OBLIGATIONS REGARDING MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR OF THE FACILITY.

a. Upon the execution of this Quitclaim Deed, OWNER shall be solely responsible and liable
for the removal, reconstruction, replacement, operation, maintenance, and repair of the
Facility including, without limitation, removal of refuse, weed control and abatement, and
dredging (as needed), at its sole cost and expense.  OWNER shall keep the Facility open
and free of obstructions, including, but not limited to, berms, trees, permanent excavations,
shrubs, buildings, and permanent structures of any kind.  OWNER agrees to assume the
risk for damage to property, or injury or death to any persons, to the extent arising from
OWNER’s reconstruction, replacement, operation, maintenance and repair of, or failure to
operate, maintain or repair the Facility.  The DISTRICT shall have no duty or obligation with
respect to the Facility.

b. If OWNER’s exercise of its rights or performance of its obligations under this Quitclaim
Deed, including the right of removal, placement, replacement, reconstruction, use,
maintenance, or repair of the Facility, or any portion thereof, causes damage, injury,
impairment or degradation to any of the DISTRICT's irrigation and/or drainage facilities, or
any other property or facilities of the DISTRICT, OWNER shall at its sole cost and expense
repair said damage, injury, impairment or degradation upon written notice by the DISTRICT.
All such repair shall be performed in a timely and workmanlike manner and shall restore the
damaged facilities to the condition immediately preceding such damage, injury, or
impairment, provided that if any alteration is required to conform to applicable building
codes or laws, or DISTRICT standards or specifications as they exist from time to time, the
DISTRICT shall have the right to review and approve all plans, and to observe and inspect
such repairs in the same manner as provided in Section 4 of this Agreement.

6. INDEMNIFICATION OF THE DISTRICT BY OWNER.

a. OWNER shall defend, indemnify, and hold the DISTRICT and its agents, servants,
employees, subcontractors, and anyone acting by, for, or on behalf of it, harmless from and
against any and all claims, demands, liabilities, losses, damages, actions, lawsuits,
proceedings, expenses and costs, awards, assessments, penalties, fines, or judgments,
(including court costs and attorney’s fees, experts’ and consultants’ fees and costs) of any
nature whatsoever, at law or in equity (“Claims”), arising at any time, that in any way result
from, relate to, or arise out of this Quitclaim Deed and/or the performance of or failure to
perform OWNER’s obligations hereunder.  OWNER’s duty to defend under this Quitclaim
Deed is separate and distinct from its duty to indemnify hereunder.

b. The obligations of OWNER to indemnify and defend the DISTRICT shall include any events,
instances, or circumstances in which the DISTRICT or any of its agents, servants,
employees, subcontractors, or anyone acting by, for, or on behalf of it, is alleged to be liable
for any act or omission with respect to the Facility, whether negligent or otherwise,
regardless of whether any such negligence or fault is alleged to be active or passive, and
regardless of whether the DISTRICT is alleged to have caused or contributed to any injury
or damage in any way.

Page 29 of 75



Page 4 of 10 

7. HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES.

a. OWNER shall not use, generate, manufacture, store or dispose of, on, under or about the
Facility, or any of the DISTRICT’s facilities, any flammable, explosive or radioactive
material, toxic substance, hazardous waste, hazardous material, hazardous substance, or
the equivalent (hereinafter "Hazardous Substance") as those terms may now or in the future
be defined by common practice or by any federal, state or local governmental body or
agency, except in strict compliance with all applicable statutes, regulations, and rules of
such governmental bodies and agencies.

b. Without limiting any remedies the DISTRICT may have, in the event any disposal, release,
discharge, or spill of a Hazardous Substance or if other contamination occurs on the
DISTRICT's facilities at any time due to OWNER’s drainage into the DISTRICT’s facilities,
contamination to the extent directly or indirectly caused by the negligence or willful
misconduct of OWNER, OWNER shall immediately notify the DISTRICT and take all action
to mitigate the effects of such disposal, release, discharge or spill or contamination.
OWNER shall, at its own expense, unless otherwise directed by the DISTRICT, remediate
such disposal, release, discharge or spill or contamination in compliance with all applicable
laws, rules and regulations.  The DISTRICT shall have the option to perform the remediation
itself or through any contractor of its choice and OWNER shall cooperate with the
DISTRICT to complete the remediation and shall reimburse the DISTRICT for all costs and
expenses incurred in connection with the remediation.

c. In the event OWNER observes any material it believes or has reason to believe may be an
illegal discharge of a Hazardous Substance within the Facility or any DISTRICT facility not
due to OWNER’s use of the Facility, OWNER shall, without disturbing the conditions,
immediately notify the DISTRICT, and avoid any activities that would exacerbate or prevent
remediation of the contamination.  The DISTRICT reserves the right to investigate the
condition and to take any clean-up or other remedial action the DISTRICT deems necessary
in its sole discretion at the DISTRICT’s expense.

d. In the event the DISTRICT or its agents elect to perform remediation work, OWNER shall,
upon notice from the DISTRICT, cease use of the DISTRICT's facilities as directed in the
notice.  The DISTRICT shall notify OWNER when the condition has been resolved, at which
time, but not before, OWNER may resume its use of the DISTRICT's facility.

8. TIMING OF WORK ON IMPROVEMENTS TO THE FACILITY.

OWNER shall not perform any work during any irrigation season which would unreasonably
interfere with the delivery of irrigation water or the collection of irrigation drainage into the
Facility by any of the Neighbors.

9. WORK BY INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS.

If any of OWNER’s privileges or duties under this Quitclaim Deed are exercised or performed by
any independent contractor, OWNER shall contractually bind said contractor to the duties and
obligations of OWNER hereunder, and shall require said contractor to indemnify, defend, and
hold the DISTRICT harmless to the same extent as OWNER is required to do, pursuant to this
Quitclaim Deed.

Page 30 of 75



Page 5 of 10 

10. NO REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES BY THE DISTRICT.

a. Nothing in this Quitclaim Deed shall be construed as creating or imposing upon the
DISTRICT any duty or obligation to maintain or repair the Facility.

b. This Quitclaim Deed shall operate to give OWNER the rights herein provided only insofar as
the DISTRICT may do so under and by virtue of the rights that the DISTRICT has in the
Facility.  It is further expressly agreed that this Quitclaim Deed is made without
representation or warranty of any kind.

11. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS.

The covenants and agreements contained herein shall run with the land and shall inure to the
benefit of, and shall be binding upon, the heirs, successors, and assigns of both parties.

12. DISCLOSURE OF OBLIGATIONS HEREIN TO ANY SUCCESSOR IN INTEREST.

OWNER expressly agrees to disclose to all transferees of the Property that they are obligated
under this Quitclaim Deed as successors in interest, and to provide any such transferee(s) with
a copy of this Quitclaim Deed prior to close of escrow.

13. WAIVER.

No waiver by the DISTRICT of any provision of this Quitclaim Deed will be deemed a waiver of
any other provision hereof or of any subsequent breach by any other party of the same or any
other provision.  The DISTRICT’s consent to, or approval of any act by OWNER that requires
the DISTRICT’s consent or approval will not be deemed to render unnecessary the obtaining of
the DISTRICT’s consent to, or approval of any subsequent act by the DISTRICT.

14. SEVERABILITY.

If any provision of this Quitclaim Deed is determined to be illegal, unenforceable, or invalid in
whole or in part for any reason, such illegal, unenforceable, or invalid provisions or parts thereof
will be stricken from this Quitclaim Deed and such provisions will not affect the legality,
enforceability, or validity of the remainder of the Quitclaim Deed.

15. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.

This Quitclaim Deed constitutes the entire agreement and understanding between the parties
relating to the subject matter hereof.  All prior or concurrent negotiations, agreements, and
understandings, oral or written, are revoked, cancelled, and rescinded, and are all merged
herein and superseded hereby.  No amendment, modification, or supplement to this Quitclaim
Deed will be binding on any of the parties unless it is in writing and signed by both parties.

16. NOTICES.

Page 31 of 75



Page 6 of 10 

Any notice required to be given under this Quitclaim Deed shall be deemed to have been 
properly given when, and only when, the same is in writing and has been received or refused 
deposit in the United States Mail, with postage prepaid, to be forwarded by Certified Mail, 
Return Receipt Requested, or delivered by carrier and addressed to the parties at the 
addresses set forth under their signatures on Page 6.   

Such addresses may be changed from time to time by any party by serving notice to the parties 
as provided above.  Notices delivered shall be deemed delivered forty-eight (48) hours after 
deposit in the United States Mail as aforesaid. 

17. EXECUTION.

Each person signing below represents and warrants that he or she is duly authorized and has
the legal capacity to execute and deliver this Quitclaim Deed.  Each party has reviewed this
Quitclaim Deed with their respective counsel, or has had the opportunity to do so and has
knowingly and voluntarily chosen not to do so.  This Quitclaim Deed was executed voluntarily
without any duress on the part of, or the exertion of any undue influence over, any of the parties
hereto.  The parties acknowledge and agree that they have read and understood this Quitclaim
Deed and its legal effect.

Page 32 of 75



Page 7 of 10 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Quitclaim Deed (Portion of Cavill 
Drain) to be executed on the day and year first above written. 

"DISTRICT" 
OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 

_______________________________________ _____________________ 
Thomas D. Orvis, President  Date 
Board of Directors 

_______________________________________ _____________________ 
Scot A. Moody Date 
General Manager/Secretary 

Mailing Address: 1205 East F Street 
Oakdale, CA  95361 

"OWNER" 

_____________________ 
John P. Brichetto Date 

_____________________ 
Jacqueline Brichetto Date 

Mailing Address: PO Box 11600 
Oakdale, CA  95361 

SIGNATURES MUST BE NOTARIZED AND BE PER RECORDED DEED 

Page 33 of 75



Page 8 of 10 

NOTARY 

CERTIFICATE OF ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

State of California 
County of Stanislaus 

On                               before me                                                                                         , Notary Public, 
personally appeared ________________________________________________________________ 
who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed 
to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their 
authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity 
upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing 
paragraph is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal 

_________________________________ 
Signature (Seal) 

CERTIFICATE OF ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

State of California 
County of Stanislaus 

On                               before me                                                                                         , Notary Public, 
personally appeared ________________________________________________________________ 
who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed 
to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their 
authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity 
upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing 
paragraph is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal 

_________________________________ 
Signature (Seal) 

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the 
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the 
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 

Page 34 of 75



Page 9 of 10 

NOTARY 

CERTIFICATE OF ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

State of California 
County of Stanislaus 

On                               before me                                                                                         , Notary Public, 
personally appeared ________________________________________________________________ 
who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed 
to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their 
authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity 
upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing 
paragraph is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal 

_________________________________ 
Signature (Seal) 

CERTIFICATE OF ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

State of California 
County of Stanislaus 

On                               before me                                                                                         , Notary Public, 
personally appeared ________________________________________________________________ 
who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed 
to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their 
authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity 
upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing 
paragraph is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal 

_________________________________ 
Signature (Seal) 

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the 
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the 
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 

Page 35 of 75



Page 10 of 10 

EXHIBIT "A" 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY 

That certain property situated in the State of California, County of Stanislaus, 
Unincorporated Area, described as follows: 

LOTS 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, AND 8 OF MIDDLETON COLONY, ACCORDING TO THE 
OFFICIAL MAP THEREOF, FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE RECORDER OF 
STANISLAUS COUNTY, CALIFORNIA, ON DECEMBER 2, 1912 IN VOLUME 7 OF 
MAPS, AT PAGE 16. 

EXCEPTING THEREFROM ALL THAT PORTION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER 
OF SECTION 27, TOWNSHIP 2 SOUTH, RANGE 10 EAST, MOUNT DIABLO BASE 
AND MERIDIAN, INCLUDED WITHIN A STRIP OF LAND 110 FEET IN WIDTH, 55 
FEET ON EACH SIDE OF THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED CENTER LINE, AND SAID 
CENTER LINE PRODUCED NORTHEASTERLY AND SOUTHWESTERLY; 
BEGINNING AT A POINT IN THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER 
OF SECTION 27, DISTANT ALONG SAID LINE WESTERLY 465.03 FEET FROM THE 
NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUART OF SECTION 27; THENCE 
FROM THE POINT OF BEGINNING SOUTH 78⁰ 06’ WEST 2230.24 FEET TO A 
POINT IN THE WEST LINE OF SAID SECTION 27, DISTANT ALONG SAID LINE 
SOUTH 1⁰ 20’ EAST 460.01 FEET FROM THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 
SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 27, BEING A PORTION OF LOTS 3, 4, 5 AND 
6 OF MIDDLETON COLONY; AS CONVEYED TO THE CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN 
FRANCISCO BY DEED RECORDED DECEMBER 27, 1923 IN VOLUME 49 OF 
OFFICIAL RECORDS, AT PAGE 47, STANISLAUS COUNTY RECORDS. 

End of Description 

Page 36 of 75



Page 37 of 75



BOARD AGENDA REPORT 
Date:    March 5, 2024 
Item Number:  6 
APN:   N/A 

SUBJECT: APPROVE BOARD ATTENDANCE AT THE ACWA SPRING CONFERENCE MAY 7 – 
MAY 9, 2024, IN SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Directors’ attendance at the ACWA Spring Conference May 7 - 
     May 9, 2024, in Sacramento, California 

BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY: 
The ACWA Spring Conference is scheduled for May 7 – May 9, 2024, in Sacramento, CA.  This is being 
brought to the Board for approval of the Directors’ attendance at the conference. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Full Conference and Meals Advanced Registration is $840 (by 4/19/24). 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 Preliminary Agenda for Spring Conference
 Registration, Meals & Hotel Pricing

Board Motion: 

Motion by: ___________________________  Second by: ______________________________ 

VOTE: 
Orvis (Yes/No)  Doornenbal (Yes/No)  Santos (Yes/No)  DeBoer (Yes/No)  Tobias (Yes/No) 

Action(s) to be taken: 
Page 38 of 75



 Qualify for continuing education credit          Designated Recorded Programs TBD

Questions: Email events@acwa.com
Online Registration Deadline: April 19, 2024

All conference programs are subject to 
change without notice.

Last Updated: 1/23/24

PRELIMINARY AGENDA
SACRAMENTO  |  MAY 7 – 9, 2024

TUES WED THUR 5/9/245/8/245/7/24

7:30 AM – 8:30 AM
CONTINENTAL BREAKFAST  
IN THE EXHIBIT HALL 

8:30 AM – 10:00 AM
WELCOME KEYNOTE/MAIN STAGE 

10:30 AM – 11:45 AM 
PROGRAM SESSIONS 

12:00 PM – 1:30 PM 
CONNECT IN THE EXHIBIT HALL
NETWORKING LUNCHEON

1:30 PM – 2:00 PM
SOLUTION SPOTLIGHTS
• Member Case Study, Associate Service, Demo

1:30 PM – 2:15 PM
WATER TALK / MAIN STAGE 

2:30 PM – 3:30 PM
PROGRAM SESSIONS 

3:45 PM – 5:00 PM
REGION 1-10 MEMBERSHIP MEETINGS

5:00 PM – 6:00 PM
ACWA RECEPTION IN THE EXHIBIT HALL

7:00 AM – 8:00 AM
WELLNESS ACTIVITY

7:30 AM – 11:00 AM
CONNECT IN THE EXHIBIT HALL 

7:30 AM – 9:00 AM
CONTINENTAL BREAKFAST  
IN THE EXHIBIT HALL

8:30 AM – 9:00 AM
SOLUTION SPOTLIGHTS 

9:15 AM – 10:15 AM
PROGRAM SESSIONS 

10:30 AM – 11:30 AM
PROGRAM SESSIONS 

11:45 AM – 1:15 PM
KEYNOTE & AWARDS/MAIN STAGE 

1:30 PM – 3:00 PM
CLOSING NETWORKING LUNCHEON 

8:00 AM – 9:15 AM 
AGRICULTURE COMMITTEE

8:30 AM – 12:00 PM 
ACWA JPIA SEMINARS

9:30 AM – 10:45 AM
GROUNDWATER COMMITTEE

11:00 – 12:15 PM 
WATER MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
ENERGY COMMITTEE

12:15 PM – 1:30 PM 
COMMITTEE NETWORKING LUNCH

12:30 PM – 1:30 PM 
OUTREACH TASK FORCE

1:45 PM – 3:00 PM
FINANCE COMMITTEE
LOCAL GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE
WATER QUALITY COMMITTEE

3:15 PM – 4:45 PM
COMMUNICATIONS COMMITTEE
FEDERAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
LEGAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
MEMBERSHIP COMMITTEE

5:00 PM – 6:30 PM
WELCOME RECEPTION 
IN THE EXHIBIT HALL

Page 39 of 75



REGISTER ONLINE
Register online by April 19, 2024 at www.acwa.com to take advantage of the advance pricing.

REGISTER ON SOMEONE’S BEHALF
Select from a list of people affiliated with your company in your account. If the registrant is not listed, you will need to 
create a Portal profile for the registrant through the ACWA website before registering.

REGISTRATION OPTIONS
Advantage pricing applies to ACWA public agency members, associates & affiliates. 
Standard pricing applies to non-members of ACWA.

ADVANCE 
DEADLINE: 4/19/24

ONSITE

ADVANTAGE STANDARD ADVANTAGE STANDARD

Full Conference Registration
Includes access to Tuesday ACWA Committee meetings, all ACWA conference programs, 
ACWA meal functions*, ACWA Exhibit Hall, ACWA hosted receptions and access to on-
demand designated conference recordings after the live conference. *ACWA meal functions 
include: Wednesday Continental Breakfast, Wednesday Networking Lunch, Thursday Continental 
Breakfast and Thursday Closing Lunch

$840 $1,260 $870 $1,290

Tuesday Committee Meetings Only (complimentary - must register to attend) 
Includes Tuesday Committee Box Lunch. Committee meetings are not recorded. Virtual 
participation is not available.

$0 $0 $0 $0

One-Day Conference Registration
Wednesday, May 8: Includes access to all Wednesday ACWA conference programs,  
Tue. ACWA Welcome Reception in the Exhibit Hall, Wed. ACWA Reception in the Exhibit 
Hall, Wed. ACWA Continental Breakfast and Wed. ACWA Networking Lunch. On-demand 
designated conference recordings are NOT included.
Thursday, May 9: Includes access to all Thursday ACWA conference programs, Thur. ACWA 
Continental Breakfast and Thur. ACWA Closing Lunch. On-demand designated conference 
recordings are NOT included.

$490 $735 $520 $765

Guest Conference Registration
Guest registration is not  available to anyone with a professional reason to attend.  
Includes access to ACWA hosted receptions.

$130 $130 $130 $130

PRE-ORDER: On-Demand Designated Conference Recordings Only
Includes on-demand access to designated conference recordings after the live conference.  
Video recordings will only be available for the Main Stage presentations. All other designated 
educational programs will only have audio recordings on-demand and PDFs of presentations made 
available. See preliminary agenda for details.

$240 $360 $240 $360

HOTEL INFORMATION

You must be registered for the ACWA conference in order to receive hotel reservation information and conference special room 
rates. Conference special rates are available  February 1 – April 15, based on availability.

HOTEL & ROOM RATES
Hyatt Regency Sacramento  $225 per night* (resort fee waived)
Sheraton Grand Sacramento  $226 per night* (resort fee waived)
* Plus applicable state/local taxes & fees

HEALTH & SAFETY 
Please check ACWA’s conference page HERE for current 
health & safety information.

IMPORTANT DATES
The conference hotel room block opens on  February 1, 2024.
Deadline for group rate is April 15, 2024.
For those registering for conference prior to February 1, information 
on how to reserve your hotel room will be provided via e-mail on  
February 1.
For those registering for conference from February 1 to April 15, your 
confirmation e-mail will include the information on how to reserve your 
hotel room and an opportunity to receive the conference special hotel 
rates. 

Conference terms and conditions available at acwa.com in the event section.

ACWA 2024 Spring Conference & Expo
May 7 – 9, 2024  |  Sacramento, CA

QUESTIONS?  Contact events@acwa.com

GROUP SAVINGS! Register 5 individuals from the same organization, receive a 6th registration free! 
(Subject to terms and conditions.) Contact Teresa Taylor at  TeresaT@acwa.com for more information before registering.

REGISTRATION, MEALS AND HOTEL INFORMATION SHEET

Page 40 of 75

https://www.acwa.com/events/2024-spring-conference-expo/
https://www.acwa.com/events/2024-spring-conference-expo/
https://www.acwa.com/confattendeetc/


BOARD AGENDA REPORT 
Date:   March 5, 2024 
Item Number:  7 
APNs:  075-015-023/025/026 &

075-031-034

SUBJECT: APPROVE RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ABANDONMENT AND QUITCLAIM 
OF THE TALBOT PIPELINE (APNs: 075-015-023/025/026 & 075-031-034) 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve 

BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY: 
The City of Riverbank is planning to make improvements to the Morrill Road and Roselle Avenue 
intersection and recently inquired about the Oakdale Irrigation District’s use of the Talbot Pipeline 
(Pipeline) where it crosses Roselle Avenue.  Staff reviewed and determined the Pipeline is no longer 
in service and has been inactive since the lands it historically provided service to were annexed into 
the City of Riverbank and detached from OID in 2005.  Given the Pipeline is no longer active, staff 
notified the landowners of the parcels noted above of the intent to formally abandon and quitclaim the 
Pipeline through their parcels and gave them thirty (30) days to comment before proceeding. 
Landowners of APNs: 075-015-025/026 and 075-031-034 contacted OID and approved of moving 
forward.  The landowner of APN: 075-015-023 did not respond.   

As such, OID staff recommends that the Board of Directors (Board) formally quitclaim and abandon 
said facility within the parcels noted above by Resolution of Abandonment and Quitclaim Deed 
(attached).  

FISCAL IMPACT: Staff time for document preparation. 

ATTACHMENTS:   
 Abandonment Resolution
 Quitclaim Resolutions (3)
 Quitclaim Deeds (3)
 Project Site Maps (3)

Board Motion: 

Motion by: ___________________________  Second by: ______________________________ 

VOTE: 
Orvis (Yes/No)  Tobias (Yes/No)  Doornenbal (Yes/No)  Santos (Yes/No)  DeBoer (Yes/No) 

Action(s) to be taken: 

Page 41 of 75



RECORDED AT THE REQUEST OF: | 
| 

Oakdale Irrigation District | 
| 

WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: | 
| 

Oakdale Irrigation District  | 
1205 East F Street  | 
Oakdale, California  95361  | 

| 

RESOLUTION No. 2024-NIL 

ABANDONMENT OF A DISTRICT FACILITY 
TALBOT PIPELINE 

AND PROJECT SITE MAP EXHIBIT “A” 

Page 42 of 75



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-NIL 

ABANDONMENT OF A DISTRICT FACILITY 

TALBOT PIPELINE 

APNs: 075-015-023/025/026 & 075-031-034 

WHEREAS, the Oakdale Irrigation District facility known as the Talbot Pipeline, is located 
within the Southwest 1/4 of Section 25 and the Northeast 1/4 of Section 35, Township 2 
South, Range 9 East, Mount Diablo Base and Meridian in the City of Riverbank, Stanislaus 
County; and  

WHEREAS, the Talbot Pipeline has been reviewed by the Water Operations Department 
and has been determined to be operationally unnecessary, and 

WHEREAS, Oakdale Irrigation District has no plan to expand or modify the use of the 
Talbot Pipeline and has no need to maintain said facility as described, and the 
abandonment of said facility will not be detrimental to the irrigation operations of the 
Oakdale Irrigation District. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that we find the abandonment of the Talbot 
Pipeline as herein described and as shown on the attached Project Site Map attached 
hereto as Exhibit “A” is appropriate and be adopted. 

Upon Motion of Director _________, seconded by Director __________, and duly 
submitted to the Board for its consideration, the above-titled Resolution was unanimously 
adopted this _________ day of __________, 2024. 

Yes: 
No: 
Absent: 

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 

_________________________ 
Tom Orvis, Board President 

_________________________ 
Scot A. Moody, Secretary 

Page 43 of 75



Page 44 of 75



RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND 
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 
1205 East F Street 
Oakdale, CA 95361 

MAIL TAX STATEMENTS TO: 

James B Hurley 
3106 Talbot Ave 
Riverbank, CA 95367 

APN: 075-015-025 

QUITCLAIM DEED – TALBOT PIPELINE 

FOR A CONSIDERATION, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, 

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT, an irrigation district organized and existing under the 
laws of the State of California, does hereby remise, release and forever quitclaim to the 
property owners of record, James B Hurley, any interest in that fifteen (15) foot easement 
along the south property line of the parcel noted above as shown on that certain Parcel 
Map recorded December 12, 1978 in Book 28 of Parcel Maps on Page 38, in the Office of 
the Stanislaus County Recorder.  

Said easement is as shown on the attached Project Site Map attached hereto as Exhibit 
“B”. 

Approved by Board Action on March 5, 2024, as shown in the Resolution attached hereto 
as Exhibit “A”. 

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 

____________________________ __________________________ 
Thomas D. Orvis, President  Date  

____________________________ __________________________ 
Scot A. Moody, Secretary  Date 

Revenue and Tax Code 11911 
Documentary Transfer $0.00 
[ ] computed on full value of property conveyed, or 
[ ] computed on full value less liens & encumbrances 
remaining hereon at time of sale. 
______________________________________ 
Signature of declarant or agent determining tax-firm 
name. 

Page 45 of 75



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-NIL 

AUTHORIZING QUITCLAIM DEED TO 
JAMES B HURLEY 

APN: 075-015-025 

WHEREAS, the Oakdale Irrigation District facility known as the Talbot Pipeline, located 
within the Southwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 25, Township 2 South, Range 9 
East, Mount Diablo base and Meridian, is situated adjacent to and parallel with the south 
property line of the parcel noted above, lying in the City of Riverbank, Stanislaus County; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Talbot Pipeline has been reviewed by the District Engineering 
Department and Water Operations Department and determined to be operationally 
unnecessary; and 

WHEREAS, Oakdale Irrigation District has no plan to expand or modify the current use of 
the Talbot Pipeline and has no need to maintain said facility within the parcel noted above 
and abandonment of that portion of said facility will not be detrimental to the irrigation 
operations of the Oakdale Irrigation District. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that any interest in any interest in that fifteen 
(15) foot easement along the south property line of the parcel noted above as shown on
that certain Parcel Map recorded December 12, 1978 in Book 28 of Parcel Maps on Page
38, in the Office of the Stanislaus County Recorder, be quitclaimed to the titled owner of
said property, and that said Quitclaim in its entirety is incorporated by reference and
attached to this Resolution.

Upon Motion of Director _________, seconded by Director __________, and duly 
submitted to the Board for its consideration, the above-titled Resolution was 
unanimously adopted this _________ day of __________, 2024. 

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 

_______________________ 
Thomas D. Orvis, President 

________________________ 
Scot A. Moody, Secretary 

Page 46 of 75



Page 47 of 75



RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND 
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 
1205 East F Street 
Oakdale, CA 95361 

MAIL TAX STATEMENTS TO: 

Sergio Mungia 
3124 Talbot Ave 
Riverbank, CA 95367 

APN: 075-015-026 

QUITCLAIM DEED – TALBOT PIPELINE 

FOR A CONSIDERATION, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, 

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT, an irrigation district organized and existing under the 
laws of the State of California, does hereby remise, release and forever quitclaim to the 
property owners of record, Sergio Mungia, any interest in that fifteen (15) foot easement 
along the south property line of the parcel noted above as shown on that certain Parcel 
Map recorded December 12, 1978 in Book 28 of Parcel Maps on Page 38, in the Office of 
the Stanislaus County Recorder.  

Said easement is as shown on the attached Project Site Map attached hereto as Exhibit 
“B”. 

Approved by Board Action on March 5, 2024, as shown in the Resolution attached hereto 
as Exhibit “A”. 

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 

____________________________ __________________________ 
Thomas D. Orvis, President  Date  

____________________________ __________________________ 
Scot A. Moody, Secretary  Date 

Revenue and Tax Code 11911 
Documentary Transfer $0.00 
[ ] computed on full value of property conveyed, or 
[ ] computed on full value less liens & encumbrances 
remaining hereon at time of sale. 
______________________________________ 
Signature of declarant or agent determining tax-firm 
name. 

Page 48 of 75



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-NIL 

AUTHORIZING QUITCLAIM DEED TO 
SERGIO MUNGIA 

APN: 075-015-026 

WHEREAS, the Oakdale Irrigation District facility known as the Talbot Pipeline, located 
within the Southwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 25, Township 2 South, Range 9 
East, Mount Diablo base and Meridian, is situated adjacent to and parallel with the south 
property line of the parcel noted above, lying in the City of Riverbank, Stanislaus County; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Talbot Pipeline has been reviewed by the District Engineering 
Department and Water Operations Department and determined to be operationally 
unnecessary; and 

WHEREAS, Oakdale Irrigation District has no plan to expand or modify the current use of 
the Talbot Pipeline and has no need to maintain said facility within the parcel noted above 
and abandonment of that portion of said facility will not be detrimental to the irrigation 
operations of the Oakdale Irrigation District. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that any interest in any interest in that fifteen 
(15) foot easement along the south property line of the parcel noted above as shown on
that certain Parcel Map recorded December 12, 1978 in Book 28 of Parcel Maps on Page
38, in the Office of the Stanislaus County Recorder, be quitclaimed to the titled owner of
said property, and that said Quitclaim in its entirety is incorporated by reference and
attached to this Resolution.

Upon Motion of Director _________, seconded by Director __________, and duly 
submitted to the Board for its consideration, the above-titled Resolution was 
unanimously adopted this _________ day of __________, 2024. 

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 

_______________________ 
Thomas D. Orvis, President 

________________________ 
Scot A. Moody, Secretary 

Page 49 of 75



Page 50 of 75



RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND 
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 
1205 East F Street 
Oakdale, CA 95361 

MAIL TAX STATEMENTS TO: 

Lydia P Martinez 2020 Trust 
5931 Roselle Ave 
Riverbank, CA 95367 

APN: 075-031-034 

QUITCLAIM DEED – TALBOT PIPELINE 

FOR A CONSIDERATION, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, 

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT, an irrigation district organized and existing under the 
laws of the State of California, does hereby remise, release and forever quitclaim to the 
property owners of record, Lydia P Martinez 2020 Trust, any interest in that certain Grant 
of Easement with Instrument No. 1972-11472, recorded March 24, 1972, in the Office of 
the Stanislaus Recorder.  

Said easement is as shown on the attached Project Site Map attached hereto as Exhibit 
“B”. 

Approved by Board Action on March 5, 2024, as shown in the Resolution attached hereto 
as Exhibit “A”. 

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 

____________________________ __________________________ 
Thomas D. Orvis, President  Date  

____________________________ __________________________ 
Scot A. Moody, Secretary  Date 

Revenue and Tax Code 11911 
Documentary Transfer $0.00 
[ ] computed on full value of property conveyed, or 
[ ] computed on full value less liens & encumbrances 
remaining hereon at time of sale. 
______________________________________ 
Signature of declarant or agent determining tax-firm 
name. 

Page 51 of 75



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-NIL 

AUTHORIZING QUITCLAIM DEED TO 
LYDIA P MARTINEZ 2020 TRUST 

APN: 075-031-034 

WHEREAS, the Oakdale Irrigation District facility known as the Talbot Pipeline, located 
within the Northeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 35, Township 2 South, Range 9 
East, Mount Diablo base and Meridian, is situated within the parcel noted above, lying in 
the City of Riverbank, Stanislaus County; and 

WHEREAS, the Talbot Pipeline has been reviewed by the District Engineering 
Department and Water Operations Department and determined to be operationally 
unnecessary; and 

WHEREAS, Oakdale Irrigation District has no plan to expand or modify the current use of 
the Talbot Pipeline and has no need to maintain said facility within the parcel noted above 
and abandonment of that portion of said facility will not be detrimental to the irrigation 
operations of the Oakdale Irrigation District. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that any interest in any interest in that certain 
Grant of Easement with Instrument No. 1972-11472, recorded March 24, 1972, in the 
Office of the Stanislaus County Recorder, be quitclaimed to the titled owner of said 
property, and that said Quitclaim in its entirety is incorporated by reference and 
attached to this Resolution. 

Upon Motion of Director _________, seconded by Director __________, and duly 
submitted to the Board for its consideration, the above-titled Resolution was 
unanimously adopted this _________ day of __________, 2024. 

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 

_______________________ 
Thomas D. Orvis, President 

________________________ 
Scot A. Moody, Secretary 

Page 52 of 75



Page 53 of 75



Page 54 of 75



BOARD AGENDA REPORT 
Date:   March 5, 2024 
Item Number:  8 
APN:   N/A 

SUBJECT: REVIEW AND TAKE POSSIBLE ACTION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION APPROVING 
WATER AVAILABILITY FOR THE 10-YEAR OUT-OF-DISTRICT WATER SALE 
PROGRAM DURING THE 2024 IRRIGATION SEASON 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution Approving Water Availability for the 10-Year Out-of-District 
Water Sale Program During the 2024 Irrigation Season 

BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY: 
At the February 7, 2023 Board meeting, the Board of Directors approved the final 10-Year Out-of-District 
Water Sale Program Agreement (Agreement).  In accordance with the Terms and Conditions of the 
Agreement, a surplus water determination will be made by OID each year based on hydrologic conditions 
and publicly discussed at a meeting of the OID Board of Directors. 

Last water season (2022/2023) OID diverted just shy of 219,000 acre feet (AF) with approximately 6,000 
AF going to local out-of-District lands, thus making OID’s in-District diversions 213,000 AF.  Approximately 
5,000 AF less was used in October 2023 than in October 2022, but the 2022/2023 water season didn’t start 
until April because of late winter rain events.  Staff anticipates any water above an allocation of 240,000 AF 
will be surplus to the in-District needs during the 2023/2024 water season.  OID anticipates that its full 
300,000 AF allocation will be received, so surplus water will be available. 

Under the Terms and Conditions of the Agreement, when available, a minimum of 1.5 acre-feet per irrigated 
acre must be purchased upfront at a rate of $206 per acre-foot by all participating landowners with existing 
turnouts in place.  The minimum water charge will apply to all remaining participating landowners once their 
new turnouts are installed by OID (likely no later than the start of the 2025 water season).   

Staff recommends the Board adopt the attached resolution approving water availability for the 10-year Out-
of-District Water Sale Program during the 2024 irrigation season.  Out-of-District lands will only be provided 
surface water from OID’s pre-1914 water rights.  In accordance with the Agreement, OID would continue to 
provide the opportunity for participating landowners to receive Out-of-District water for as long into the 2024 
irrigation season as sufficient pre-1914 water (unimpaired in the river flow) supply remains available. 

FISCAL IMPACT:   Potential 2024 revenue of +/-$1.5M (+/-5,000 Irr. Acres x 1.5 AF/Irr. Acre x 
$206/AF) 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 Resolution 2024-NIL

Board Motion: 

Motion by: ___________________________  Second by: ______________________________ 

VOTE:   
Orvis (Yes/No)  Doornenbal (Yes/No)  Santos (Yes/No)  DeBoer (Yes/No)  Tobias (Yes/No) 

Page 55 of 75



Action(s) to be taken: 

Page 56 of 75



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-NIL 

APPROVING WATER AVAILABILITY FOR THE OAKDALE IRRIGATION 
DISTRICT 10-YEAR OUT-OF-DISTRICT WATER SALE PROGRAM 

DURING THE 2024 IRRIGATION SEASON 

WHEREAS, a determination has been made on the availability of “surplus water” for surface 
irrigation use outside Oakdale Irrigation District’s service area for 2024; and 

WHEREAS, the in-District water budget forecasts 240,000 AF of in-District water use in 2024 for the 
determination of the availability of “surplus water.” 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Oakdale Irrigation District approved the 10-Year Out-of-
District Water Sale Program Agreement (Agreement) on February 7, 2023; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Oakdale Irrigation District hereby approves the 
availability of surface water for the Oakdale Irrigation District 10-Year Out-of-District Water Sale 
Program during the 2024 irrigation season. 

Upon motion of Director _____________, seconded by Director _________, and duly submitted to 
the Board for its consideration, the above titled resolution was unanimously adopted at the regular 
meeting of the Board of Directors of the Oakdale Irrigation District this fifth day of March in the year 
2024. 

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 

_____________________________ 
Thomas D. Orvis, President 
Board of Directors 

_____________________________ 
Scot A. Moody 
General Manager/Secretary 

Page 57 of 75



Page 58 of 75



Serving Stewards of
Western Water Since 1993

2020-2022 Water Budget Update

March 5, 2024

Serving Stewards of
Western Water Since 1993

Oakdale Irrigation District 
Water Budget Update for 

Years 2020 to 2022
March 5, 2024

Board of Directors Presentation

Serving Stewards of
Western Water Since 1993

2020-2022 Water Budget Update

March 5, 2024

Agenda

Water Budget Background
OID Water Budget
Overall Water Budget Results
Individual Flow Path Review
Questions and Discussion

Slide 2

Page 59 of 75



Serving Stewards of
Western Water Since 1993

2020-2022 Water Budget Update

March 5, 2024

Water Budget Background:
What is a Water Budget?

A complete accounting of all water 
flowing into and out of a defined 
area (e.g. the district) over a 
specified period (months or years)
Inflow - Outflow ± Change in 
Storage  =  0 
Just like your checking account: 
Deposits - Withdrawals ± Change in 
Balance  = 0

Slide 3

Source(s): DWR, 2016. Best Management Practices for the Sustainable Management of Groundwater: Water Budget BMP.

Serving Stewards of
Western Water Since 1993

2020-2022 Water Budget Update

March 5, 2024

OID Water Budget Background
Divided into North and South zones
Four accounting centers

Distribution system
Farmed lands
Drainage system

Computed monthly for years 2005 to 2022
Update adds 2020 to 2022

Emphasis on irrigation season with annual accounting to quantify recharge

Slide 4

Accounting 
Center

Atmosphere

Groundwater
System

Surface
Inflow

Surface
Outflow

Page 60 of 75



Serving Stewards of
Western Water Since 1993

2020-2022 Water Budget Update

March 5, 2024

Slide 5

OID Water 
Budget 

Schematic
Every flow path is 
quantified
Closure terms:

Farm deliveries
Deep 
percolation of 
applied water
Tailwater to 
drainage system

Serving Stewards of
Western Water Since 1993

2020-2022 Water Budget Update

March 5, 2024

Slide 6

Note: Land Use Reduced by 7.5% (to account for assessed vs. irrigated acreage, based on analysis of Landsat satellite data)

Page 61 of 75



Serving Stewards of
Western Water Since 1993

2020-2022 Water Budget Update

March 5, 2024

Overall Water Budget Results

Slide 7

Serving Stewards of
Western Water Since 1993

2020-2022 Water Budget Update

March 5, 2024

Simplified 
Boundary 
Balance

Slide 8

Diversions

Pumping Seepage and
Deep Percolation

Precipitation Evapotranspiration

Surface
Outflows

Change in Storage

Page 62 of 75



Serving Stewards of
Western Water Since 1993

2020-2022 Water Budget Update

March 5, 2024

Simplified 
Boundary 
Balance

Slide 9

Average Annual 
Volumes, 

2005 2019

Diversions
218 taf

Pumping
46 taf

Seepage and
Deep Percolation

82 taf

59 taf
Precipitation

188 taf
Evapotranspiration

Surface
Outflows

46 taf
Change in Storage

1 taf

Net
Recharge

36 taf

Serving Stewards of
Western Water Since 1993

2020-2022 Water Budget Update

March 5, 2024

Simplified 
Boundary 
Balance

Slide 10

Average Annual 
Volumes, 

2005 2022 Pumping
45 taf
(-1 taf)

Seepage and
Deep Percolation

83 taf (+1 taf)

57 taf (-2 taf)
Precipitation

195 taf (+7 taf)
Evapotranspiration

Change in Storage
1 taf

Net
Recharge

38 taf
(+2 taf)

Diversions
223 taf
(+5 taf)

Surface
Outflows

44 taf
(-2 taf)

Page 63 of 75



Serving Stewards of
Western Water Since 1993

2020-2022 Water Budget Update

March 5, 2024

Slide 11

Takeaways:
1. Increasing diversions since 2015
2. High ET demand in 2021 and 2022

(Critically dry years)
3. Loss of storage in 2021 and 2022

Serving Stewards of
Western Water Since 1993

2020-2022 Water Budget Update

March 5, 2024

Slide 12

Takeaways:
1. District diversions increased since 2015 and
returned to pre-2014 levels
2. Surface water more than 97% of supply

Page 64 of 75



Serving Stewards of
Western Water Since 1993

2020-2022 Water Budget Update

March 5, 2024

Slide 13

Takeaways:
1. Farm deliveries have continued to increase in a pattern
parallel to the increase in diversions
2. Conveyance efficiency of 77-81%, spillage of ~6%

Serving Stewards of
Western Water Since 1993

2020-2022 Water Budget Update

March 5, 2024

Individual Flow Paths

Slide 14

Page 65 of 75



Serving Stewards of
Western Water Since 1993

2020-2022 Water Budget Update

March 5, 2024

Slide 15

Takeaway:
1. Farm deliveries calculated as water budget
closure term closely align with measured farm
deliveries (4.3% average difference)
2. Measured volumes consistently lower

Serving Stewards of
Western Water Since 1993

2020-2022 Water Budget Update

March 5, 2024

Slide 16

Takeaways:
1. Increase in groundwater pumping since 2014
with a peak in 2015
2. Recent years have shown decreasing trend in
pumping (with exception of 2021 and 2022)

Page 66 of 75



Serving Stewards of
Western Water Since 1993

2020-2022 Water Budget Update

March 5, 2024

Net Groundwater Recharge

Slide 17

Takeaways:
1. Consistent net recharge (with exception of 2015)
2. Relatively lower net recharge from 2012 onwards
3. Cumulative net recharge is roughly 700 taf

Serving Stewards of
Western Water Since 1993

2020-2022 Water Budget Update

March 5, 2024

Thanks! Questions and Discussion

Slide 18

Page 67 of 75



Page 68 of 75



DISCUSSION ITEM 

Date:  March 5, 2024 
Item Number: 10 
APN:   N/A 

SUBJECT: DISCUSSION ON THE START OF THE 2024 IRRIGATION SEASON 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: 
Inflow to New Melones as of February 27th was 299k AF (attached).  DWR’s Bulletin 120 estimates 
the April thru July runoff to be 565 TAF at the 90% exceedance ratio (attached).  With the latest 
series of late winter storms and current snow pack there is little doubt that the District will receive its 
full allocation during the 2024 water year.   

Soil is saturated across the District after the recent storms. The start of the season will remain 
contingent upon weather.  However, with no significant rain events in the extended forecast, 
preparations to bring water into the system may need to begin the week of March 11th with 
Distribution System Operator (DSO) orientation and training early in the week followed by system de-
winterization to allow the first water deliveries to commence +/-March 18th.  Construction and 
maintenance activities will continue in accessible areas in the meantime.   

As things start to dry out and little-to-no rain is in the extended forecast, OID will post the start of the 
irrigation season on the OID website and the DSOs will be available to start fielding calls and 
scheduling a few days before the bulk of the first irrigation deliveries begin.  The first day of the 
rotation tends to vary a bit in each division every year dependent upon how dry conditions are along 
with any unanticipated start-up issues that inevitably occur.  Staff intends to provide the opportunity 
for surface water to all in-district connected lands within the first 12 days of the start of rotation.  

Staff is anticipating another efficient and productive irrigation season and welcomes any comments, 
questions or other feedback from the Board. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 Daily CVP Water Supply Report (February 27th)
 B-120 Water Supply Forecast Summary (Feb. 20th)

Board Comments: 

Page 69 of 75



Accumulated Precipitation for Water Year To Date in Inches
Reservoir Current WY 

2024
WY 1977 WY 1983 Average

(N Years)
% of

Average
Last

24 Hours
Trinity at Fish Hatchery 27.01 16.19 31.99 21.53 ( 64) 125 0.00
Sacramento at Shasta Dam 47.97 22.50 60.14 40.82 ( 69) 118 0.00
American at Blue Canyon 29.59 80.26 43.42 ( 50) 68 0.33
Stanislaus at New Melones 18.20 --- 23.90 18.16 ( 47) 100 0.00
San Joaquin at Huntington Lk 19.44 11.50 38.60 26.27 ( 51) 74 0.00

Accumulated Inflow for Water Year to Date in Thousands of Acre-Feet
Reservoir Current WY 2024 WY 1977 WY 1983 15 Yr Avg % of 15 Yr Avg
Trinity 631 198 989 380 166
Shasta 2,617 1,459 4,433 2,119 124
Folsom 700 553 2,586 977 72
New Melones 299 --- 659 340 88
Millerton 499 333 556 365 137

 Reservoir Releases in Cubic Feet/Second
Reservoir Dam WY 2023 WY 2024 15 Yr Median
Trinity Lewiston 680 312 310
Sacramento Keswick 3,321 35,276 3,321
Feather Oroville(SWP) 950 10,000 1,750
American Nimbus 3,950 6,011 2,244
Stanislaus Goodwin 340 1,907 340
San Joaquin Friant 461 521 400

Storage in Major Reservoirs in Thousands of Acre-Feet
Reservoir Capacity 15 Yr Avg WY 2023 WY 2024 % of 15 Yr Avg
Trinity 2,448 1,480 797 1,760 119
Shasta 4,552 3,068 2,727 3,821 125
Folsom 977 499 537 613 123
New Melones 2,420 1,442 1,086 1,981 137
Fed. San Luis 966 655 657 914 140
Total North CVP 11,363 7,143 5,804 9,089 127
Millerton 521 291 235 338 116
Oroville (SWP) 3,538 2,088 2,553 2,976 143

Historical Archive and Report Database

Daily CVP Water Supply
Run Date: 2/27/2024

February 26, 2024

Page 70 of 75



��������	
�����������
���	��������������
������������������������������ !"#$%&%#'()�*(+(,�&-./01+�+#�12('304��56�7�8�9���7�:;��������������������<;��=>?@?ABC�DEF?GAH@ IJJ KJL MNLKKO KPLMLO IL ML Q MCRJO MCMOO KCKJO MMKS@TUHF�AH�VWXGAX MCRPOMCKLL QRLONL RPLKQOKKOKLOKLL OCRJL RCKQO QCMRL NJVXY>XZE@AC�[E@\ KCKJQMCNRLMCIKOJJO PLOIJJKQIKOLKRJ QCLQL PCLQO MKCQIL NJ]EXAWE>C�̂>H_?UUE NPM JLL PPLONL RJOKKLMMO QQ JP ICQQO KCJNO PCPQO QNàbXC�VZX>A_?UUE IMO KNL KNLIMO IKLMMO IL MO MO MCJLO MCMMO KCNKL JOcZE>?YX@C�]HUGHZ IRM IRL IJLRLL IQOMPL IO MM Q KCLOL MCKML ICINO JPdHGaZ@EGC�e?YW?fX@�[X> OP QL JJ RN II ML I M M IML MPL JMO JNeHgEUaZ@EC�hX>\EE PO PO QOMKI MQL NO MK I K PIL IPO NPO QKVAX@?GUXaGC�iHH\F?@ NM MLL MIOMQL KRLMKO KO N O NML OPO MCRPL JJ=aHUaZ@EC�DX�i>X@fE MKN MJL MNOKPL INOKNL OO MM O MCOML MCLPO KCIJL JJeE>YE\C�eYdUa>E PO NL MILMRL KKLMIL IL ML O QKL OOO MCIIL QMVX@�jHXka?@C�e?UUE>AH@ MPM MRL MPLKIL RLLIKLMML IR MO MCOJL NQO KCIMO QQl?@fGC�h?@E�]UXA MRL NO MILKLO INOKNO NO IM MR MCRLL QNL KCMOO QRlXFEXWC�=E>Z?@aG RI IL RO OR QN OR MI R I IIO KKL PLL JN=aUEC�VaYYEGG KN KL KP KK MI R M L L MMO PO KKO QJlE>@C�SGXbEUUX MRK OL PO JO MIKMLM RK KL MI PRL RPO NJL NO=WE�X_E>XfEG�X>E�TH>�AWE�mE>?H\�MNNM�AH�KLKLno@?ZmX?>E\�>a@HTT�>Em>EGE@AG�AWE�@XAa>XU�FXAE>�m>H\aYA?H@�HT�X�>?_E>�bXG?@C�a@XUAE>E\�bB�amGA>EXZ�\?_E>G?H@GC�GAH>XfEC�H>�bBEpmH>A�H>�?ZmH>A�HT�FXAE>�AH�H>�T>HZ�HAWE>�FXAE>GWE\GnqXAE>�BEX>�\?GA>?baA?H@G�X@\�NL�X@\�ML�mE>YE@A�EpYEE\X@YE�FXAE>�BEX>�TH>EYXGAG�T>HZ�AWE�]Eb>aX>B�MC�eX>YW�MC�cm>?U�MC�X@\eXB�M�[aUUEA?@�MKL�TH>EYXGAG�X>E�HTT?Y?XU�TH>EYXGAGnqXAE>�BEX>�\?GA>?baA?H@G�X@\�NL�X@\�ML�mE>YE@A�EpYEE\X@YE�FXAE>�BEX>�TH>EYXGAG�T>HZ�FEEgUB�[aUUEA?@�MKL�om\XAE�TH>EYXGAGX>E�YH@G?\E>E\�a@HTT?Y?XUn�[aUUEA?@�MKL�om\XAE�TH>EYXGAG�X>E�TH>�YH@\?A?H@G�XG�HT�X@B�\XB�HT�AWE�ZH@AW�HAWE>�AWX@�AWE�T?>GA�HT�AWE

��rstu�:���56�7���6:�r7v;����������
wxyz{�|zx{�}~{z�x�y�����x{|�x����~�y��|����y{���y�~������y�~��x����~}�x�{z�}zzy�wxyz{��z� ~�yy�{��x� }z� �x{x�{�x|������x���z�wxyz{�|zx{�y~yx� �����{~�x����y|�{x��z�������������������������������������������� w|���x�z{x�z

�~yz�

� ���t576��t9�697�97

Page 71 of 75



���������	�
������������
	�����	�������������������������
�
���������
��	��������	����
�������
��������	���	��������
����������������	����������������������������������������
���
�����������������
��������������������������������������
������� ���!�
����������	���
����"���!�
�����������	�������	����	��������	�
��������������������
�������������������	��������#�
� ������ #�
���������$����������� % "&'� "()��*�#������ +	�
��, #�������+	�
��,$����������� % "&'� "()��*"-���� .���� -�����.����$����������� % "&'� "()��/�-��
�� ������ -��
���������$����������� % "&'���*)�  /0���� 1��� 0�����1���$�����������
23456

7324874�92:3;<84932:9;64�28<5 =864�28<5 5<89= >?325

Page 72 of 75



DISCUSSION ITEM 

Date:  March 5, 2024 
Item Number: 11 
APN:   N/A 

SUBJECT: DISCUSSION – BRICHETTO 1896 AND 1898 WATER CONTRACT 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION:  

 Brichetto 1896 and 1898 Water Contract

ATTACHMENTS: 
None 

Board Comments: 

Page 73 of 75



Page 74 of 75



Page 74 of 74


	Item #1 -  Minutes 2.6.24.pdf
	Consent Item #1 - ATTACHMENT - (DRAFT) 2.6.24 Minutes -(FS's format).pdf
	MINUTES
	Directors:  Tom Orvis, President
	Brad DeBoer, Vice President
	Linda Santos
	Herman Doornenbal
	Ed Tobias
	Scot A. Moody
	General Manager/Secretary


	Item #2 OID Stmt of Obligations.pdf
	Consent Item #2  03052024.pdf
	SOB Cover Sheet.pdf
	Check Register 03052024.pdf
	Obligation List 03052024.pdf

	Item #3 Improvement Districts Stmt of Obligations.pdf
	Consent Item #3 - Improvement Districts' Statement of Obligations.pdf
	WARRANT 2023 O&M.pdf
	SIGNATURE PAGE 2024.pdf

	Item #4 - CFO's  Treasurer Report January 2024.pdf
	Consent Item #4 - CFO's  Treasurer Report January 2024.pdf
	TREASURER'S REPORT_01.31.24.pdf
	Cover Page
	STATEMENT_OF_FUNDS
	TREASRPT


	Item #5 - QCAbandon Agenda 063-029-075 (Cavill Drain).pdf
	Consent Item #5 -- ATTACHMENT - RESOLUTION --- QCResolution_063-029-075 (Cavill Drain).pdf
	AUTHORIZING ABANDONMENT OF A PORTION OF A DISTRICT FACILITY AND QUITCLAIM DEED TO
	JOHN P. BRICHETTO AND JACQUELINE BRICHETTO


	Item #7 - Board Report w Attachments - QC Abandon.pdf
	Attachment 1a - (RESOLUTION) Abandon Res_Talbot Pipeline.pdf
	OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

	Attachment 2 - QCDeed_075-015-025.pdf
	OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

	Attachment 2a - RESOLUTION - QCRes_Talbot PL_075-015-025.pdf
	AUTHORIZING QUITCLAIM DEED TO
	JAMES B HURLEY

	Attachment 3 - QCDeed_075-015-026.pdf
	OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

	Attachment 3a - RESOLUTION - QCRes_Talbot PL_075-015-026.pdf
	AUTHORIZING QUITCLAIM DEED TO
	SERGIO MUNGIA

	Attachment 4 - QCDeed_075-031-034.pdf
	OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

	Attachment 4a - RESOLUTION - QCRes_075-031-034.pdf
	AUTHORIZING QUITCLAIM DEED TO
	LYDIA P MARTINEZ 2020 TRUST

	Attachment 2 - QCDeed_075-015-025 - REVISED JMH.pdf
	OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

	Attachment 3 - QCDeed_075-015-026 - REVISED JMH.pdf
	OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT





